
Democratic Services Committee 
 

Meeting Venue 
By Teams 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Meeting date 
Monday, 19 October 2020 

 
Meeting time 
10.00 am 

 
For further information please contact 
Carol Johnson 
01597 826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 13-10-2020 
 

 

Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod.  
Rhowch wybod pa iaith rydych am ei defnyddio erbyn hanner dydd, ddau ddiwrnod 
gwaith cyn y cyfarfod.  
You are welcome to speak Welsh or English in the meeting.  
Please inform us of which language you wish to use by noon, two working days 
before the meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 

2.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  

 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting(s) of the 
Committee as a correct record. 

 Minutes 07-02-2020 
(Pages 3 - 6) 
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF  INTEREST  

 
To receive and consider declarations of interests from Members relating to items to 
be considered on the agenda. 
 
 

4.  CONSTITUTION AND OTHER MATTERS  

 
To consider the report from the Solicitor to the Council. 
(Pages 7 - 86) 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 



 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
HELD IN CHAMBER ON FRIDAY, 7 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
PRESENT: County Councillor E Vaughan (Chair) 
County Councillors G Breeze; D Davies; D Jones-Poston; J Charlton; K Laurie-Parry; 
K Silk; L Corfield; M Weale; S Davies; S Williams; S Hayes; K Lewis; P Roberts 
 
Clive Pinney, Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
Ness Young, Corporate Director: Resources and Transformation 
Diane Reynolds, Interim Head of Digital Services 
 

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors D Rowlands; D 
Evans; R Williams. 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 

3.  MEMBERS’ FACILITIES AT COUNTY HALL – PROPOSED CHANGES IN 
THE MEMBERS’ LOUNGE  

 
The Chair welcomed Isobel Bowen, Property Services to the meeting to update 
the Committee on Members’ facilities in County Hall, since the last meeting.  It 
was noted that since the last discussion at this committee, a discussion with 
group leaders has been held and there was a suggestion there is a need for a 
room to facilitate the opposition groups and that a Chairman’s Office is required. 
 
Draft plan was circulated and CP provided outline of layout for Committee’s 
comment.  CP advised that members support would sit immediately at entrance 
of members lounge; current chairman’s office to be utilised by Cabinet; two 
further additional meetings rooms partitioned which would be available to any 
member; move chairman’s office to room next to Cttee Room B; kitchen will 
remain.  Confirmation has been received from Welsh Government that they will 
not provide funding to support the refurbishment of the members lounge. 
 
The Committee raised concern regarding the cost for refurbishment and cost of 
lighting and requested a breakdown of the virement for members room 
refurbishment.  The need for sound separation for meeting rooms was raised to 
be considered.  It was confirmed that a new lift will be installed to allow people 
the access to this part of County Hall. 
 
The Committee also raised concern on space.  Noted that it is accepted that on 
full Council day it will be full, however the current members’ lounge space is 
currently under-utilised. 
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That the proposal to utilise existing 
furniture is accepted. 
 
Detailed information on the cost of 
members room refurbishment. 

Message is to minimise spending 
and cost and utilise existing 
furniture. 
 
To provide confirmation that this is 

Page 3

2



 

value for money and complies with 
financial procedure and 
procurement rules and to ensure 
there is no cost avoidance. 

 
The Chair thanked Isobel Bowen for attending. 

 

4.  RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE ACCESS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  

 
The Chair had circulated the Terms of Reference for this Committee. 
 
The report next on the agenda if private and confidential that contains 
information on staff and therefore would not be appropriate for staff to learn 
about it through any other means other than through the formal consultation 
process. 
 
The Committee were advised that the reason behind the report is to put in place 
a structure that enables multi-skilling to provide adequate, appropriate and a 
more resilient support for Members, which does result in a saving. 
 
The Chair noted that the report refers to the Local Government Act 1972 and his 
understanding is that Part 1 is for England and Part 4 is for Wales.  CP 
apologised if it has been stated wrongly. 
 
Committee voted (4 x no; 2 x abstentions) and it was agreed that they would 
enter a private and confidential session to discuss the next item on the agenda. 

 
Press left the meeting. 

 

5.  PROPOSED CHANGES TO SUPPORT MEMBERS 

 
5.1 Proposed restructure of Democratic Services, Committee Service and 

Members Support Service 
 

Committee were reminded that this report relates to individuals and their post 
and the need to respect the importance for staff to hear from their manager at the 
appropriate point.   

 
The Committee considered the report regarding the proposed restructure for 
Democratic Services, Committee Service and Members Support Service.  The 
proposal is to have a multi skilled team and a reduction of 2 fte in this proposal.  
There will be different methods of working to enable extra capacity.  CP’s 
judgement is that the degree of support will be adequate, reasonable and 
appropriate for the demands that members have and there will always be 
opportunity to review and change it if appropriate (proposal to review in 6-9 
months time). 

 
Committee raised concerns around Scrutiny and that in the past it has not been 
well resourced and there is a need for a really strong powerful scrutiny section 
and if there is a reduction, scrutiny will not be supported to the extent they 
require in order to grow.  Members also raised concern that by an officer working 
across different areas, will risk putting into jeopardy the improvement made with 
Scrutiny.  CP and NY confirmed there is commitment from the Senior Leadership 

Page 4



 

Team to continue to improve scrutiny and there is commitment that SLT fulfil 
their obligations to Members to scrutinise service areas. 
 
Committee were informed that a formal review is to provide members comfort.  
The proposed structure should provide more resilience to all sections and there 
will continue to be 1:1 scrutiny officers.  It was also noted that it is a legal 
requirement for a Democratic Services Manager role, as the law currently stands 
the Monitoring Officer cannot also be the Democratic Services Manager. 
 
3:45pm – County Councillor S Hayes left the meeting. 
 
Committee was advised that officers could provide further detail on the operating 
model and what ongoing improvements it could deliver and the support that 
members would receive. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was put to the vote and approved, with a request 
that Committee’s concerns and anxieties on the proposal are included within the 
report recommendation. 
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That Committee’s concerns and 
anxieties are noted. 
 
Recommendation is approved, and 
that a formal review of the structure 
is undertaken at 6 months. 

 
 
 
 
Committee felt that 6-9 months was 
too long of time period. 

 
5.2 IT Support 

 
The Chair welcomed Diane Reynolds, Interim Head of Digital Services to the 
meeting.  The Committee considered the report regarding the proposed ICT 
support to Members.  The Chair noted that a report with the same proposal had 
been considered by this Committee in April 2019 and had been rejected. 
 
The Committee were advised that the proposed changes should not be viewed 
as a reflection on the current member of staff, but to put a more robust service in 
place. 
 
DR brought a Service Level Agreement to Committee which set out what ICT 
would be provided and hold DR accountable to.  This would set out a formal 
agreement and strengthen the service provided and provide continuity of service.  
The proposal is to train other officers within ICT and implement a staff rota and 
build on their experience of working with Members. 
 
Members noted that the current system works well and the level of support is 
superb.  Members asked if training for members could be offered.  DR advised 
that Microsoft are potentially visiting in April to update members on Microsoft 
packages to assist with accessibility. 

 
The officer’s recommendation was put to the vote and was agreed. 

 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

The proposal for the SLA for ICT  

Page 5



 

support for Members be supported. 

 
COUNTY CLLR E VAUGHAN 

CHAIR 

Page 6



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

Democratic Services Committee 
19th October, 2020 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Solicitor to the Council 

SUBJECT: Constitution and Other Matters 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

Decision 

 
1. Speaking at Council Meetings.  
 
1.1 The Committee is asked to consider the length of Full Council meetings. A review 

was undertaken of the length of Council meetings across Wales between October 
2018 and March 2019 and Powys' meeting ranged between 2h 54m and 6hr 19m. 
The average length of meetings across Wales was 2h 39m.  

 
1.2 Since May 2019 Council meetings have ranged between 2h 10m and 4h 34m with 

the exception of a 22m Council meeting in December 2019. Since the pandemic the 
2 Council meetings held have been 4h13m and 3h 49m respectively. 

 
1.3 In reviewing the Constitutions of other Councils in Wales, it has become apparent 

that in a number of Councils, when matters are being debated, political groups use 
nominated speakers to represent the views of that political group at the meeting 
rather than having numerous speakers from the floor. These nominated speakers 
would consolidate the views of each of the political groups and prevent repetition. 
Those members who were not members of political groups would be able to make 
individual submissions as usual. 

 
1.4 It must be understood that if such a process is used groups will undoubtedly use 

different spokespersons for different topics. Members who have a completely 
different point to make from those already presented will at the discretion of the 
Chair be allowed to make those points to the meeting. 

 
1.5 The Committee is asked to consider whether to trial such a process at 3 Full 

Council meetings for a period to be determined, to be followed by a review of that 
process by the Democratic Services Committee.  

 
1.6 There would be alternatives which could reduce the length of Council meetings  

which DSC might wish to consider, but these are not recommended to DSC for the 
reasons stated below : 

 

 Restricting the number of Members (irrespective of political groups) who 
could speak on agenda items, but the danger would be that a first come , first 
speak process would be undemocratic; 

 Restrict the time for each agenda item, but again this might be considered 
undemocratic 

 

Recommendation to the County 
Council: 

Reason for Recommendation: 

That a trial of nominated speakers on To review the process for debates at 

Page 7

4



behalf of political groups be 
undertaken at 3 Full Council meetings, 
followed by a review of the trial by the 
Democratic Services Committee. 
 

Full Council meetings. 

 
2. Amendments to the Constitution 
 
2.1 The following are the amendments to the Constitution for consideration by the 

Committee: 

Part 4 Full Council  
(Appendix 1) 

Rules: 
Questions:  
4.30.1 and 4.30.2 
Motions: 
4.37.1; 4.43.1 
Amendments: 
4.49.1.5; 4.49.2 

Clarification of the Rules 
regarding the receipt of 
Questions, Motions and 
Amendments by the 
Monitoring Officer  

Part 7 Scrutiny 
Committees 
(Appendix 2) 

Rule 7.36 – Call-In 
Procedure Rules 
 
Rule 7.37 – Call-In and 
Urgency 

Arising from a report by 
SWAP on contract 
management to remove 
any potential conflict of 
interest in officer roles in 
the scrutiny call-in 
process. 

 

Recommendation to the County 
Council: 

Reason for Recommendation: 

That the amendments to Parts 4, and 7 
of the Constitution be approved. 
 

To review and update the Constitution 
as necessary. 

 
3. Review of Senior Salaries. 
 
3.1 The Committee established a Working Group to undertake an annual review of 

Senior Salaries and make recommendations to Council at the Annual Meeting. Due 
to the pandemic the Working Group has not met in 2020 to undertake the annual 
review.  

 
3.2 The Council due to the legislative requirement to publish the Members' Schedule of 

Remuneration by 31st July 2020, approved the Schedule at its meeting on 30th July 
2020. However the Council is still able to review and amend the Schedule during 
the year. 

 
3.3 A review of Senior Salaries for 2020 does need to be undertaken and the 

Committee in the first instance is asked to appoint a new Working Group. The 
current membership is as follows: 

 
County Councillors: 
David Evans, Diane Jones-Poston, Kathryn Silk and Roger Williams. 
 

Page 8



3.4 The Chair of the Democratic Services Committee is not in receipt of a Senior Salary 
and the Committee is requested to considering adding the Chair to this Working 
Group as a minimum to increase the number to 5 members. 

 

Recommendation:  Reason for Recommendation: 

That the Committee review the 
membership of the Senior Salaries 
Working Group and appoint 5 
members to the Group. 
 

To review the membership of the 
Working Group. 

 
4. Welsh Language Forum 
 
4.1 Attached is a report regarding the proposed establishment of a New Panel to 

promote the Welsh Language and to provide oversight for Welsh Language 
provision within the Council. (Appendix 3 and 4) 

 
4.2 The Committee is asked to recommend to Full Council that the new Panel be 

established. 
 

Recommendation to the County 
Council: 

Reason for Recommendation: 

(i) That a new cross cutting Panel to 
promote the Welsh Language 
and provide oversight for Welsh 
Language provision within the 
Council be approved. 

(ii) That the membership of the Panel 
as set out in the report be 
approved/ 

 

To establish a new Panel to promote 
the Welsh Language and provide 
oversight for Welsh Language 
provision within the Council. 

 
5. Scrutiny Improvement. 
 
5.1 As part of the ongoing improvement journey for scrutiny, there has been a 

discussion with Group Leaders as to how this could be progressed and a number of 
suggestions are recommended to the Committee for consideration, namely: 

 

 Mentoring and coaching for Chairs and Vice-Chairs 

 Reviews of Chairs 

 Reviews of members of scrutiny committees 
 
5.2 It is important to state, at the outset that this should not be seen as a negative 

exercise, or something to be feared. The aim of all of these proposals is to try to 
improve the engagement of scrutiny participants, seek constructive criticism (i.e. 
critical friend) and aid the positive development and learning of individual Members 
so that there is a higher engagement by Members in the scrutiny process, with 
committees operating effectively with all participants contributing to achieve that 
aim. 

 

Page 9



5.3 Officers have been in discussion with the WLGA about undertaking the Coaching / 
Mentoring of Chairs. It has been confirmed that during the current period WLGA can 
provide this at no cost to the Council. The proposal for consideration is as follows: 

 
(i) Coaching / Mentoring to be offered to the Chairs of the 3 Scrutiny 

Committees initially. This could be extended to Vice-Chairs once the process 
has been tested. This would involve an initial conversation between the 
Member and Coach / Mentor (2 hours maximum), followed by the 
observation of a meeting and then one to one feedback to those individual 
Members. 

(ii) Reviews of committee members – a simple process needs to be devised to 
incorporate questions around: 

 Does the Member engage in their scrutiny committee meetings, how 
often, it this dependent on the subject being considered. 

 What are the barriers preventing them from asking questions. Is this 
around background knowledge, are the ways that reports are written 
not helpful, are there any other reasons why they do not wish to 
contribute. 

 What would assist members engage. 
 

(iii) The results of the review in (ii) would be consolidated into an anonymised list 
of points and can have a two-fold impact: 
(a) This could be used for a discussion between the Scrutiny Manager 

and the Chair of the Committee (possibly involving the Coach / Mentor 
as well) as there could be implications for the way that committees are 
run, or agendas set or the way that committees are chaired. 

(b) The list of barriers and suggestions for improvements could drive new 
ways of working for scrutiny committees generally but also highlight 
specific training requirements for Scrutiny Members. These could be 
added to the Member Development Programme  

 
5.4 This simplified process removes the need for peer to peer comments and therefore 

focuses on processes rather than individuals. The whole process also needs to be 
voluntary as forcing members to take part would not be helpful to the overall aim 
which is to improve scrutiny. 

 
5.5 The Committee's views on these proposals are sought. 
 

Recommendation to the County 
Council: 

Reason for Recommendation: 

(i) That to continue the 
improvement of scrutiny in 
Powys that the following 
proposals be approved: 

 Mentoring and coaching for 
Chairs of scrutiny initially 
and extended to Vice-Chairs 
at a later time 

 reviews of Chairs 

 Reviews of members of 
committees 

(ii) That a mentoring / coaching and 

To continue the improvement of 
scrutiny in Powys. 

Page 10



review scheme be established 
and implemented as set out in 
the report. 

 

 
Relevant Policy (ies):  
Within Policy: Y  Within Budget: Y 

 
Relevant Local Member(s): N/A 

 
Person(s) To Implement Decision: Wyn Richards 
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented:  

 

Contact Officer: Wyn Richards, Scrutiny Manager and Head of Democratic 
Services. 

Tel:   01597-826375 
Email:   wyn.richards@powys.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers used to prepare Report: 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 1 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Introduction 
4.1 The Full Council is a formal meeting of all Councillors.  The Full Council is 

required by law to take certain important decisions including setting the 
Council’s Budget and Council Tax and approving a number of key plans and 
strategies, which together form the Policy Framework (listed below).  It is 
responsible for all of the functions not the responsibility of the Cabinet.  It will 
carry out some functions itself, but others will be delegated to Committees or 
named Officers. 

 
The Policy Framework 
4.2 The Policy Framework means the following plans and strategies: 
 

Plan, Scheme and Strategy Reference 
• Children and Young People’s 

Plan; 
• Regulations made under Section 26 

of the Children Act 2004 (c.31) 
• Best Value Performance 

Plan; 
• Section 6(1) of the Local 

Government Act 1999 9c.27) 
• Community Strategy; • Section 4 of the Local Government 

Act 2000 (c.22) 
• Crime and Disorder 

Reduction Strategy; 
• Sections 5 and 6 of the Crime and 

Disorder Act 1998 9c.37) 
• Health and Well-Being 

Strategy;  
• Section 24 of the National Health 

Service Reform and Health Care 
professions Act 2002 9c.17) 

• Local Transport Plan; • Section 108 of the Transport Act 
2000 (c.38) 

• Plans and alterations which 
together comprise the 
Development Plan; 

• Section 10A of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (c.8) 

• Welsh Language Scheme; • Section 5 of the Welsh Language 
Act 1993 (c.38) 

• Youth Justice Plan; • Section 40 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 (c.37) 

• Powers to approve a Young 
People’s Partnership 
Strategic Plan and a Children 
and Young Peoples 
Framework Partnership 

• Section 123, 124 and 125 of the 
Learning and Skills Act 2000 (c.21) 

• Housing Strategy; • Section 87 of the Local Government 
Act 2003 (c.26) 

• Rights of Way Improvement 
Plan; 

• Section 60 of the Countryside and 
Rights of Way Act 2000 (c.37) 

• Pay Policy • Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 
2011 

Page 13

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_578&tag=1451879542


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 2 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

• Single Integrated Plan • Part 2 – Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 20091 

 
The Single Integrated Plan (The One Powys Plan) 
4.3 This replaces four of the existing plans and strategies which formed part of the 

Policy Framework, namely the Community Strategy, the Children and Young 
People’s Plan, the Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Strategy and the 
Community Safety Partnership Plan. 

 
The Budget 
4.4 The Budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different services 

and projects, proposed contingency funds, the Council Tax base, setting the 
Council Tax and decisions relating to the control of the Council’s borrowing 
requirement, the control of its capital expenditure and the setting of virement 
limits.  The Full Council will decide the Council’s overall revenue budget and 
overall capital budget and any changes to these.  (See Section 15 for how the 
Council can change the Policy Framework or Budget referred to it for approval 
by the Cabinet.) 

 
Housing Land Transfer 
4.5 Housing Land Transfer means the approval or adoption of applications 

(whether in draft form or not) to the National Assembly for Wales for a 
programme either: 

4.5.1 by Full Council to dispose of 500 or more properties to a person under the 
Leasehold Reform, Housing and Urban Development Act 1993: or  

4.5.2 to dispose of land used for residential purposes where approval is required 
under section 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985. 

 
Functions of the Full Council  
4.6 Only the Full Council will exercise the following functions: 
 
4.6.1 adopting and changing the Constitution; 
4.6.2 approving or adopting the Single Integrated Plan (The One Powys Plan), Policy 

Framework, the Budget and any application to the National Assembly for Wales 
in respect of any Housing Land Transfer; 

4.6.3 subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in Section 14 of this Constitution, making decisions about any 
matter in the discharge of an Executive Function which is covered by the Policy 
Framework or the budget where the decision maker is minded to make it in a 
manner which would be contrary to the Policy Framework or contrary to/or not 
wholly in accordance with the budget; 

4.6.4 appointing and removing the Leader; 
4.6.5 making appointments to the committees of the Council  
4.6.6 making appointments of Chairs of the Scrutiny and Democratic Services 

committees of the Council. The Chair of a Scrutiny Committee and the 
Democratic Services Committee may be removed from office by a motion to 

 
1 Welsh Government Guidance “Shared Purpose – Shared Delivery” to Part 2 of the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2009 Rules 37 to 46. 

Page 14

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref347402605
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_585&tag=-1245971632
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref347402550


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 3 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

remove to Council which is put on the agenda pursuant to Rule 4.38.1.  
4.6.7 agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for Committees, deciding on 

their composition and making appointments to them (in accordance with the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989) unless the appointments have been 
delegated by the Council; 

4.6.8 changing the name of the area or conferring the title of freedom of the County; 
4.6.9 making or confirming the appointment of the Head of Paid Services and other 

Chief Officers2; 
4.6.10 making, amending, revoking re-enacting or adopting bylaws and promoting or 

opposing the making of local legislation or Private Bills; 
4.6.11 all Local Choice Functions set out in Section 13 of this Constitution which the 

Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather than the Cabinet; and 
4.6.12 all matters which by law must be reserved to the Council.  For example, 

appointing the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee and the pay policy 
statement; 

4.6.13 appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment has been 
delegated by the Council. 

4.6.14 to determine the level, and any change in the level, of the remuneration to be 
paid to a Chief Officer. 

 
Membership 
4.7 All Councillors shall be members of Full Council. 
4.8 Substitution is not possible at meetings of the Council. 
 
Chairing the Council 
 
Appointment And Term Of Office Of Chair, Vice-Chair And Assistant Vice-Chair 
Of Council 
4.9 The County Council will at every Annual Meeting elect from amongst its 

Councillors: 
 
4.9.1 The Chair of the County Council; 
4.9.2 The Vice-Chair of the County Council; 
4.9.3 The Assistant Vice-Chair of the County Council. 
 

and the Councillors so elected will hold office until the following Annual 
Meeting; they resign; are dismissed by a vote of Full Council upon a Motion on 
Notice; cease to be a member of the Council; or are unable to act as a 
member of the Council due to he/she being suspended or disqualified from 
being a Councillor under Part 3 of Local Government Act 2000. 

 
4.10 The post of Chair, Vice Chair and Assistant Vice Chair will be nominated by 

Councillors in Montgomeryshire, Radnorshire and Brecknockshire in rotation. 
 
4.11 In the event of a vacancy occurring between Annual Meetings the County 

Council will appoint a new Chair, Vice-Chair or Assistant Vice-Chair (as the 
case may be) at an ordinary meeting following the occurrence of the vacancy. 

 
2 Defined in Section 2.2.2 

Page 15

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilDescribe&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_595&tag=394602757
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilFullCouncil.HPSandCO&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_596&tag=433465921
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilFullCouncil.HPSandCO&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_596&tag=433465921
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref354402641
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_598&tag=-456293032


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 4 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Role and Function of the Chair 
4.12 The Chair of the Council and in his/her absence, the Vice Chair or Assistant 

Vice Chair  will have the following roles and functions: 
 
Ceremonial Role 
4.12.1 The Chair of the Council: 
 
4.12.1.1 is the civic leader of Powys County Council ; 
4.12.1.2 promotes the interests and reputation of the Council and the geographic 

area of Powys as a whole and acts as an ambassador for both; and 
4.12.1.3 undertakes civic, community and ceremonial activities and fosters 

community identity and pride. 
 

Responsibilities of the Chair 
4.12.2 The Chair of the Council will: 

 
4.12.2.1 uphold and promote the purpose of the Constitution, and to interpret the 

Constitution with advice from the Monitoring Officer when necessary; 
4.12.2.2 preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be carried out 

fairly and efficiently and with regard to the rights of Councillors  with regards 
to their (a) participation in the affairs of Council; (b) access to 
documentation and information in accordance with Section 14; and (c) the 
interests of the Community; 

4.12.2.3 ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of 
concern to the local community and the place at which Councillors who are 
not on the Cabinet are able to hold the Cabinet and Committee chairs to 
account; 

4.12.2.4 ensure public involvement in the Council’s activities; 
4.12.2.5 be the conscience of the Council; and 
 
Political Neutrality 
4.12.3 The Chair, Vice-Chair and Assistant Vice-Chair of the Council during their 

periods of office will not be actively involved with any political group to which 
they belong. 

 
4.12.4 The Chair, the Vice-Chair, the Assistant Vice-Chair of the Council, cannot be a 

member of the Cabinet . 
 
Council Meetings 
4.13 There are three types of Council meeting: 
 
4.13.1 the Annual Meeting; 
4.13.2 ordinary meetings; and 
4.13.3 extraordinary meetings 

Page 16



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 5 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Rules of Procedure and Debate 
4.14 The Council Procedure Rules contained in Rules 4.15 onwards will apply to 

meetings of the Full Council.  Unless otherwise indicated, those rules marked:  
 

♣ will apply to Cabinet and Cabinet Committees 
▲ will apply to committee and sub-committee meetings (with the exception 

of Area (Shire) Committees, and the Planning, Taxi Licensing and 
Rights of Way Committee when performing the functions of a planning 
authority as defined in Section 319ZD of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990) 

♦ will apply to Area (Shire) Committees meetings 
■ will apply to the Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee 

when performing the functions of a planning authority as defined in 
Section 319ZD of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 
Council Procedure Rules - Annual Meeting of the Council 
 
Timing and Business 
4.15 In a year when there is an ordinary election of Councillors, the annual meeting 

will take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing Councillors.  In 
any other year, the annual meeting will take place in March, April or May.  
Every Annual Meeting will: 

 
4.15.1 elect a person to preside if the Chair of the Council is not present. A member 

of the Cabinet cannot preside over a meeting of Council3; 
4.15.2 elect the Chair of the Council (subject to 4.10 above); 
4.15.3 elect the Vice Chair of the Council (subject to 4.10 above); 
4.15.4 elect the Assistant Vice-Chair of the Council (subject to 4.10 above); 
4.15.5 receive declarations of interest 
4.15.6 receive apologies for absence 
4.15.7 decide on any amendments to the Constitution4 recommended by the 

Democratic Services Committee  
4.15.8 receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader and/or the Head of Paid 

Service; 
4.15.9 elect the Leader of the Council, except where the Leader was appointed for a 

period of four years or the term of the Council at the initial annual meeting of 
the Council; 

4.15.10 be informed by the Leader of the number of Councillors to be appointed to the 
Cabinet; 

4.15.11 decide on the allocation of seats on political balanced committees to political 

 
3 Schedule 12, Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 

4 Any amendment to the committees of the Council including their size and terms of reference 
as set out in the Council’s Constitution are subject to any statutory constraints or limitations and 
provided that the Council shall appoint at least one scrutiny committee, a Standards Committee 
and such other committees as the Council considers appropriate to deal with matters which are 
neither reserved to the Council nor are executive functions under this Constitution; 

 

Page 17

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_649&tag=623108644
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_650&tag=1221120379
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23DeputyPresidingChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_651&tag=944563733
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_657&tag=237232979
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilModel.strong&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_661&tag=995425903
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilModel.strong&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_661&tag=995425903
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_661&tag=1650966538
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilModel.strong&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_661&tag=1521870410


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 6 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

groups in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 

4.15.12 receive from political groups nominations of Councillors to serve on each of 
the politically balanced committees in accordance with the seats allocated to 
the respective political groups and to make appointments accordingly 

4.15.13 appoint the Scrutiny Committees , Democratic Services Committee, Planning, 
Taxi-Licensing and Rights of Way Committee, Licensing Act 2003 Committee, 
Employment and Appeals Committee, Pensions and Investment Committee a 
Standards Committee  and such other committees and sub-committees as the 
Council considers appropriate to deal with matters which are neither reserved 
to the Council nor are Executive Functions (as set out in Section 13 of this 
Constitution); 

4.15.14 allocate the Chairs of Scrutiny Committees to the relevant political groups and 
to note the appointments to those Chairs made by the political groups 

4.15.15 appoint the Chair of the Democratic Services Committee5 
4.15.16 elect or appoint Members where vacancies occur in respect of: 

• Independent Member of Standards Committee; and 
• Lay Member of the Audit Committee; and  
• Co-Opted Members of the Scrutiny Committee; 

4.15.17 receive from the Leader any changes to the scheme of delegations (as set out 
in Section 13 of this Constitution); 

4.15.18 to approve a Schedule of Members’ Remuneration for the next ensuing 
financial year 

4.15.19 consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting.  
4.15.20 other business, not specified in the summons as the Chair considers urgent, 

subject to the nature of the urgency being specified in the minutes PROVIDED 
ALWAYS that in allowing such urgent business the Chair shall have regard to 
the fact that the Annual Meeting of the Council is normally a civic / ceremonial 
occasion; 

4.15.21 receive from political groups nominations of Councillors to serve on the Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority and to make appointments accordingly 

4.15.22 appoint 3 Councillors to the Welsh Local Government Association. 
4.15.23 appoint 1 Councillor to the Welsh Local Government Association Co-

Ordinating Committee 
4.15.24 approve the Council’s Pay Policy. Full Council has granted a dispensation for 

an officer nominated by the Section 151 Officer to be present during the 
course of the debate to answer any matters raised by members in the debate. 
Dispensation is also given for an officer to be present during the course of the 
debate to run the congress system. 

 
4.16 The order of business, with the exception of Rule 4.15.1 may be altered by the 

Chair or decision of Council 
 
4.17 Additional agenda items for the Annual Meeting next following the ordinary 

election of Councillors: 
 

4.17.1 Receive a report from the Returning Officer as to the Councillors 

 
5  Regulation  14(1) of Local Government Measure (Wales) 2011 

Page 18

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_662&tag=-1932211663
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref354402641
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilModel.strong&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_663&tag=-2134381728
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilModel.strong&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_663&tag=-2134381728
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref354402641
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilModel.strong&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_663&tag=1139542584


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 7 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

elected; 
4.17.2 Elect the Leader **; 
4.17.3 Appoint Councillors to the Standards Committee **; 
4.17.4 Appoint Councillors to the Area (Shire) Committees **; 
4.17.5 Make appointments of Councillors in accordance with the political 

balance requirements to: 
• Police and Crime Panel **; 
• Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Authority **; 

 
** Unless terminated earlier in accordance with this Constitution, this 

election / appointment will be for a term expiring at the next ordinary 
council elections.  

 
Ordinary Meetings 
4.18 Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a 

programme decided by the Council provided that the Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer shall have authority, subject to consultation with the Chair of 
Council, to change the date or time of any meeting, if such change is necessary 
in the interest of the convenient or efficient dispatch of the Council’s business.  
The order of business at ordinary meetings will be as follows: 

 
4.18.1 elect a person to preside if the Chair, Vice Chair and Assistant Vice-Chair are 

not present. A member of the Cabinet cannot preside at a meeting of the 
Council6; 

4.18.2 receive any declarations of interest from Councillors; 
4.18.3 receive apologies for absence; 
4.18.4 approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting; 
4.18.5 receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader or Chief Executive 
4.18.6 decide on any amendments to the Constitution recommended by the 

Democratic Services Committee7 
4.18.7 where required to elect, appoint, or note the appointment, or remove 

Members to / from the following positions: 
 
4.18.7.1 Chair, Vice-Chair, Assistant Vice-Chair of Council; 
4.18.7.2 Leader; 
4.18.7.3 Independent Member of Standards Committee; 
4.18.7.4 Appoint Lay Member of the Audit Committee and Co-Opted 

Members of the Scrutiny Committee; 
4.18.7.5 Chair of a Scrutiny Committee (excluding Chair of Audit) or 

Democratic Services Committee. 
 

4.18.8 (if required due to the formation of  a new political group or due to a 
Councillor joining a political group): 

 
6 Schedule 12, Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
7 Any amendment to the committees of the Council including their size and terms of reference as set out 
in the Council’s Constitution subject to any statutory constraints or limitations and provided that the 
Council shall appoint at least one scrutiny committee, a Standards Committee and such other 
committees as the Council considers appropriate to deal with matters which are neither reserved to the 
Council nor are executive functions under this Constitution 

Page 19

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_676&tag=637605938
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23DeputyPresidingChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_676&tag=-228857591
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_681&tag=1430686748


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 8 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
4.18.8.1 decide on the allocation of seats on politically balanced 

committees to political groups in accordance with the requirements 
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989; and 

4.18.8.2 receive from political groups nominations of Councillors to serve 
on each of the politically balanced committees in accordance with 
the seats allocated to the respective political groups and make 
appointments accordingly; and 

4.18.8.3 allocate the Chairs of scrutiny committees to the relevant political 
groups and to note the appointments to those Chairs made by the 
political groups in accordance with the Local Government (Wales) 
Measure 2011; 

 
4.18.9 (if required due to vacancy) note appointment of chair(s) of scrutiny 

committee(s) by the political group(s) in accordance with the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011 

4.18.10 to receive the report of the Monitoring Officer setting out appointments to fill 
vacancies on committees and outside bodies s/he has made in accordance 
with the authority delegated to him / her to make such appointments which 
accords with the wishes of a political group to whom the committee seat or 
position on the outside body has been allocated 

4.18.11 receive written statements from the Leader and / or members of the Cabinet 
(which statements shall be taken as read) and any questions and answers on 
any of the statements; 

4.18.12 receive reports from the Cabinet, Leader, Cabinet member, and any 
questions, answers and observations on any of those reports; 

4.18.13 receive reports from any of the Council’s Committees introduced by the 
relevant Committee Chair, and any questions, answers and observations on 
any of those reports; 

4.18.14 receive reports from any of the Council’s statutory officers, or Chief Officers 
and any questions, answers and observations on any of those reports 

4.18.15 receive any other report that the Chief Executive considers is required to be 
placed before the Council and any questions, answers and observations on 
any of those reports 

4.18.16 receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the business of 
joint arrangements and external organisations; 

4.18.17 consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting, 
including consideration of proposals from the Cabinet in relation to the 
Council’s Budget and Policy Framework; 

4.18.18 receive any petitions 
4.18.19 deal with any outstanding business from the last Council meeting 
4.18.20 receive and consider recommendations from the Cabinet and the Council’s 

committees 
4.18.21 consider motions of which appropriate notice has been given; 
4.18.22 receive questions submitted in accordance with Rule 4.30 (Questions on 

Notice), and answers in response to those questions. 
4.18.23 consider and debate any major issue which is relevant to the Council and its 

functions, for example a “state of the county” debate 
4.18.24 to receive the report of the Monitoring Officer setting out any changes by the 

Page 20

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_686&tag=-871671641


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 9 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Leader in the scheme of delegation and executive functions 
4.18.25 consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting 
4.18.26 other business, not specified in the summons as the Chair considers urgent, 

subject to the nature of the urgency being specified in the minutes 
4.18.27 to exclude the public for the consideration of any item in accordance with the 

Access to Information Procedure Rules in Section 14. 
4.18.28 The order of business, with the exception of Rule 4.18.1 may be altered by 

the Chair or decision of Council 
4.18.29 No meetings of the Council, or its committees (other than Committees, Sub-

Committees or Panels dealing with planning, licensing and employment 
matters), shall be held in the month of August, unless circumstances so 
require. 

 
Extraordinary Meetings 
 
Calling Extraordinary Meetings 
4.19 The Chief Executive may call Council meetings in addition to ordinary 

meetings.  Those listed below may request the Chief Executive to call 
additional Council meetings: 

 
4.19.1 the Council by resolution; 
4.19.2 the Chair of the Council; 
4.19.3 The Leader; 
4.19.4 The Head of Paid Service; 
4.19.5 The Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer; 
4.19.6 any five Councillors if they have signed a requisition presented to the 

Chair of the Council and s/he has refused to call a meeting or has 
failed to call a meeting within seven days of the presentation of the 
requisition. 

 
Business 
4.20 The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting shall be restricted to 

the item or items of business contained in the request for the extraordinary 
meeting and there shall be no consideration of previous minutes or reports from 
committees etc, except that the Chair may at his/her absolute discretion permit 
other items of business to be conducted for the efficient discharge of the 
Council’s business. 

 
Time, Place and Duration of Meetings 
 
Time and Place of Meetings 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■84.21 The time and place of meetings will be determined by the Chief 

Executive in consultation with the Chair and notified in the summons. 
 
Duration of Meetings 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■94.22 At ordinary meetings, when 8 hours have elapsed after the 

commencement of the meeting, the Chair shall adjourn immediately after the 
 

8 See Rule 4.14 

Page 21

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_694&tag=-1690063882
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_695&tag=332736702
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_697&tag=2085178496
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilMaxMeeting&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_702&tag=-1035121267
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_702&tag=1556089824


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 10 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

disposal of the item of business being considered at the time.  Remaining 
business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chair.  If he/she 
does not fix a date, the remaining business will be considered at the next 
ordinary meeting. 

 
Notice of and Summons to Meetings 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■104.23 The Chief Executive will give notice to the public of the time and 

place of any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules in Section 14.  At least 3 clear days before a meeting, the Chief 
Executive will send a summons signed by him/her to every Councillor by post 
and / or by leaving it at their usual place of residence and / or by electronic 
means including a link to the Members’ website.  The summons will give the 
date, time and place of each meeting and specify the business to be 
transacted, and will be accompanied by such reports and other documents as 
are available. 

 
Chair of Meeting 
4.24.1 Whenever present the Chair of Council will chair meetings of the Council.  In 

his / her absence the Vice-Chair of Council, or in his / her absence the 
Assistant Vice-Chair of Council or in his/her absence the Councillor elected to 
preside over the meeting in accordance with Rule 4.18.1, will take the chair. 
The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the 
Chair.  A member of the Cabinet cannot preside at a meeting of the Council 

 
▲ ♦ ■114.24.2 At the first meeting of Committees or Sub-Committees (save the 

Standards Committee) in each municipal year the Committee / Sub-Committee 
will elect a Chair and Vice-Chair for the forthcoming 12 month period save 
where the Chair of Committee has been appointed by Council by the Full 
Council in accordance with Rules 4.15.14, 4.15.15 or Rule 4.18.7.5. 

 
▲ ♦ ■124.23.3 Whenever present the Chair of a Committee / Sub-Committee 

elected in accordance with Rule 4.24.2 above will chair meetings. In his / her 
absence the Vice-Chair of the Committee / Sub-Committee will take the chair. 
In the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair the Committee / Sub-Committee will 
elect a Councillor to preside over the meeting. The person presiding at the 
meeting may exercise any power or duty of the Chair.  

 
Conduct of Meeting 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■134.25 The Chair shall conduct the meeting to secure a proper, full and 

effective debate of business items where a decision is required and a 
committee or sub-committee has not previously considered the matter. The 
steps the Chair may take include: 

 
 

9 See Rule 4.14 
10 See Rule 4.14 
11 See Rule 4.14 
12 See Rule 4.14 
13 See Rule 4.14 

Page 22

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_702&tag=-410135093
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23HLDSSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_704&tag=2115217119
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref347402550
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilMaxMeeting&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_704&tag=1428586827
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_706&tag=-336627120
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_706&tag=-336627120


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 11 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■144.25.1 calling for more time to allow the speaker to properly explain the 
matter; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■154.25.2 permitting a Member to speak more than once; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■164.25.3 allowing employees of the Council to advise the meeting as 

appropriate, having regard to the provisions of Rules 4.94 and 4.95 below; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■174.25.4 allowing a full discussion of reports and matters for decision; 
 
Quorum 
♣ ▲ ♦18 194.26 The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number 

of Members.  During any meeting if the Chair counts the number of Members 
present and declares there is not a quorum present, then the meeting will 
adjourn immediately.  Remaining business will be considered at a time and 
date fixed by the Chair.  If he/she does not fix a date, the remaining business 
will be considered at the next ordinary meeting. 

 
Remote Attendance 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■204.27 Pursuant to Section 4 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 

2011, the County Council on 22nd October, 2014 decided not to allow 
any Council meetings to be held in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 4. 

 
Questions by Councillors 
 
On Minutes, Reports or Statements of the Cabinet or Committees 
4.28 A Member of the Council may ask the Leader, Cabinet member or the Chair of 

a Committee / Sub-Committee any question without notice directly arising 
from an item in the minutes (whether or not that minute has been approved 
as a true record at a subsequent meeting of the Cabinet or Committee / Sub-
Committee), report or statements of the Cabinet / Cabinet member or a 
Committee / Sub-Committee, when that item is being received or is under 
consideration by the Council. 

 
Questions from Members 
4.29A Subject to Rule 4.30, a Councillor may ask on Notice at Full Council: 
 
4.29.1 the Chair; 
4.29.2 a member of the Cabinet; 
4.29.3 the chair of any committee or sub-committee; 
4.29.4 nominated Councillors of the Fire and Rescue Authority or the Brecon 

Beacons National Park Authority or the Police and Crime Panel 

 
14 See Rule 4.14 
15 See Rule 4.14 
16 See Rule 4.14 
17 See Rule 4.14 
18 See Rule 4.14 
19 For the quorum of the Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee acting as a Planning Authority see Rule19.92 
20 See Rule 4.14 

Page 23

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_708&tag=-283999177
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_708&tag=-92588124
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_739&tag=1560887438
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_740&tag=-196333329
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629030
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_743&tag=-1671967710
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_744&tag=-384556865


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 12 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or 
which affects the Council other than operational matters which must be addressed as 
set out in Rule 4.29C 
 
4.29B In addition to questions put under Rule 4.29A above a Councillor may ask the 

Leader or a Portfolio Holder a written question on any matter in relation to 
which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the Council other than 
operational matters which must be addressed as set out in Rule 4.29C at any 
time which must be responded to within 10 working days. All such questions 
and responses will be published on the council’s website. 

 
4.29C In addition to questions put under Rules 4.29A and 4.29B above a Councillor 

may ask the relevant Head of Service a written question on any operational 
matter at any time which must be responded to within 10 working days. All such 
questions and responses will be published on the council’s website. 

 
Notice of Questions 
4.30 A Councillor may ask a question under Rule 4.29 if either: 
 
4.30.1 written notice of the question has been delivered to received by the Monitoring 

Officer not later than 5.00 p.m. 10 Clear Days before the date of the Council 
meeting at which it is to be considered; or 

4.30.2 the question relates to urgent matters, they have the consent of the Chair and 
the Councillor to whom the question is to be put and the content of the question 
is given to received by the Monitoring Officer by 5 p.m. on the day prior to the 
meeting. 

 
Maximum Number of Questions 
4.31 A Councillor may ask only two questions (including any urgent question(s)) 

under Rule 4.29 except with the consent of the Chair of the Council. With the 
consent of the Chair of Council a Member may substitute an urgent question for 
a question that has already been raised provided that the urgent question 
complies with Rule 4.30.2. 

 
Order of Questions 
4.32 Questions of which notice has been given under Rule 4.29 will be listed on the 

agenda in the order determined by the Chair of the Council. 
 
Rejection of Questions 
4.33 Questions under Rule 4.29 may be rejected if, in the opinion of the Monitoring 

Officer and the Chair they: 
 
4.33.1 are not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility and which 

affects the administrative area of the Council; 
4.33.2 are defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
4.33.3 are substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of 

the Council in the past six months and there has been no material change in 
the answer which would be given; 

4.33.4 concern an item of business which is the subject of a report to the meeting; 

Page 24

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilName&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_746&tag=1073586655
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilName&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_746&tag=1073586655
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629065
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23HLDSSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_777&tag=109214644
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23HLDSSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_777&tag=109214644
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilWorkingDays&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_777&tag=-1443222101
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_752&tag=454549513
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23HLDSSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_752&tag=89671878
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilQuestionUrgent&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_752&tag=706423707
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629065
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_754&tag=1979818563
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629065
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_756&tag=-276928422
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629065
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_758&tag=-997570232


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 13 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

4.33.5 disclose confidential or exempt information where there is no demonstrable 
need to know; 

4.33.6 are based on opinion where the factual basis for the opinion is not detailed in 
the question 

4.33.7 relate to personal and confidential information of an employee (or former 
employee) in the view of the Monitoring Officer and / or the Section 151 
Officer. 

 
Withdrawal of Questions 
4.34.1 A question of which notice has been given can only be withdrawn with the 

consent of the person asking the question; 
4.34.2  If the Monitoring Officer considers that a response to a submitted question 

could be provided by a senior officer prior to the relevant Council meeting, 
then the Monitoring Officer may contact the Councillor concerned to ascertain 
whether the Councillor agrees that the question could be withdrawn. 

4.34.3 A question which has been withdrawn under Rule 4.34.1 may only be 
reinstated provided that Rule 4.30 has been adhered to. 

 
Responses 
4.35 A response to a question or supplementary question may take the form of: 
 
4.35.1 a direct oral answer at the meeting or if it is more appropriate to supply the 

answer in written form, a written answer should be circulated at the meeting or 
later to the questioner and other Councillors (if requested). Where an oral 
answer is given the response shall last for no longer than 5 minutes. 

4.35.2 where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 
published work, by reference to that publication, 

 
Supplementary Question 
4.36 A Councillor asking a question under Rule 4.29 may ask one supplementary 

question without notice of the Councillor to whom the first question was asked. 
The supplementary question must arise directly out of the original question or 
the reply. The Councillor asking the supplementary question may speak for no 
longer than 1 minute. The speech must not amount to a response or comment 
upon the response provided under Rule 4.35 above. 

 
Motions on Notice 
 
Notice 
4.37.1 Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 4.42 and in 

cases of urgency under Rule 4.43, written notice of every motion, must be 
delivered to received by the Monitoring Officer not later than 5.00 p.m. 10 Clear 
Days  before the date of the Council meeting at which it is to be considered.   

4.37.2 Each motion must have one Member to propose and another Member to 
second the motion and the proposer and seconder must either sign the motion 
or otherwise confirm by email or in writing to the Monitoring Officer that they are 
proposing or seconding the motion. 

Page 25

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629065
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629182
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23HLDSSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_777&tag=109214644
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilWorkingDays&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_777&tag=-1443222101
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilWorkingDays&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_777&tag=-1443222101


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 14 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Motion Set Out in Agenda 
4.38.1 Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in the 

order determined by the Chair. 
 
4.38.2 If an issue arises at a meeting of a committee as to the appointment, 

promotion, dismissal, salary, superannuation or Conditions of Service, or as to 
the conduct of any person employed by the Council, such matter shall not be 
the subject of discussion until the Council has decided on the exercise of the 
power of exclusion of the public under the terms of the Access to Information 
Rules set out in Section 14. 

 
Scope 
4.39 Motions may be rejected if, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer and the 

Chair they: 
 
4.39.1 are not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility and which 

affects the wellbeing of the administrative area of the Council; 
4.39.2 are defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
4.39.3 are substantially the same as a motion which has been put at a meeting of 

the Full Council in the past six months; 
4.39.4 concern an item of business which is the subject of a report to the meeting; 
4.39.5 disclose confidential or exempt information where there is no demonstrable 

need to know; 
4.39.6 are based upon a legally inaccurate premise; 
4.39.7 relate to personal and confidential information of an employee (or former 

employee) in the view of the Monitoring Officer and / or the Section 151 
Officer; 

4.39.8 would amount to an attempt to “Call-In” a decision of Cabinet or a delegated 
decision made by a Portfolio Holder which would not be allowed due to 
application of the Call-In rules set out in Section 7. 

 
Appointment and Removal of the Leader 
4.40.1 The following process will be followed for the appointment of the Leader: 

 
4.40.1.1 The Chair will ask for written nominations; 
4.40.1.2 The Chair will declare the number of nominations for each 

candidate and where a candidate has been nominated by more 
than 1 Councillor they will be deemed to have had their 
nomination seconded. For candidates with a single nomination, 
the Chair will ask for a seconder from the floor of Council; 

4.40.1.3 Those nominated will be asked whether they accept or refuse the 
nomination; 

4.40.1.4 In the event of there being a single candidate, there will be a 
secret ballot and the Chair will have a casting vote. 

4.40.1.5 In the event of there being more than 1 candidate, all candidates 
will be asked to leave the Chamber and each candidate will be 
invited, in alphabetical / surname order to separately make a 
presentation of up to 5 minutes to Council.  

Page 26

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_779&tag=-1800392083
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_758&tag=-997570232


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 15 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

4.40.1.6 After all presentations have been made there will be a vote by 
secret ballot. Where no candidate receives a majority on the first 
vote, the candidate with the least number of votes will be 
eliminated and a further vote will be taken. This procedure will be 
repeated until a candidate receives a majority. If the bottom 2 
candidates have the same number of votes, a vote will be taken to 
decide the candidate to be eliminated from future votes. In the 
event of an equal number of votes being cast at this stage, the 
Chair will have a casting vote as to the candidate to be eliminated. 

4.40.1.7 For the avoidance of doubt in the event of the last 2 candidates 
having the same number of votes, the Chair will have a casting 
vote as to which candidate is appointed as Leader. 

4.40.2 The Leader may be removed by a Notice on Motion which has a simple majority 
of those Councillors voting and present in the room at the time the question was 
put. 

4.40.3 A motion to remove the Leader cannot be moved more than once in any rolling 
6 month period. 

 
Two Motions per Councillor 
4.41 No Councillor may give notice of more than 2 motions for any Council meeting, 

except with the consent of the Chair. Following debate and / or amendments a 
motion will be taken as a single motion. 

 
Motions without Notice 
4.42 The following motions may be moved without notice: 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■214.42.1 to appoint a Chair of the meeting at which the motion is moved; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■224.42.2 in relation to the accuracy of the minutes; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■234.42.3 to change the order of business in the agenda; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■244.42.4 to refer something to an appropriate committee, body or individual for 
consideration or reconsideration; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■254.42.5 to appoint a committee or Member to perform a function or duty arising 
from an item on the summons for the meeting; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■264.42.6 to receive reports and / or adopt and / or amend  recommendations of the 
Cabinet, committees or Officers and any resolutions following from them; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■274.42.7 to withdraw a motion; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■284.42.8 to amend a motion; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■294.42.9 a closure motion under Rule 4.54 
4.42.10 to suspend a particular Council Procedure Rule (provided that at least one 

 
21 See Rule 4.14 
22 See Rule 4.14 
23 See Rule 4.14 
24 See Rule 4.14 
25 See Rule 4.14 
26 See Rule 4.14 
27 See Rule 4.14 
28 See Rule 4.14 
29 See Rule 4.14 

Page 27

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_787&tag=-795300462


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 16 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

half of the whole number of Members are present)30; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■314.42.11 to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■324.42.12 to not hear further a Member named under Rule 4.86 or to exclude them 

from the meeting under Rule 4.87; and 
4.42.13 to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this 

Constitution. 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■334.42.14 urgent motions, provided the requirements of Rule 4.43 is satisfied. 
 
Urgent Motions 
4.43.1 An urgent motion complying with Rule 4.37.2 may be presented, with the 

permission of the Chair, provided it has been notified to received by the 
Monitoring Officer by 5.00 p.m. on the day prior to the Council meeting 

4.43.2 Subject to Rule 4.43.3 below, the Chair has general authority to agree to take 
an urgent motion which is not on the agenda, and the discretion is entirely 
that of the Chair who alone needs to be satisfied as to the need for urgency; 

4.43.3 The general authority referred to above is qualified in that an urgent motion 
should not be taken unless: 
 
4.43.3.1 the matter dealt with in the motion has arisen between the deadline 

for the submission of motions and the date of the meeting; and 
4.43.3.2 the motion requires an urgent decision in the public interest which 

cannot be dealt with by other means  (including referring the motion 
for consideration and decision to the Cabinet or a committee), or 
left to be decided at a subsequent meeting. 

 
4.43.4 In all cases, the reason for the urgency shall be clearly stated on the motion, 

and the Chair will explain to the Council the reason why he or she has 
accepted a motion not listed on the agenda as urgent 

 
Rules of Debate 
 
No Speeches until Motion Seconded 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■344.44 No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a 

proposal and explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded. 
The proposer of the motion shall have the right to make the first speech in 
relation to the motion which s/he has moved by notice. 

 
Right to Require Motion in Writing 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■354.45 Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Chair 

may require it to be written down and handed to him before it is discussed. 
 

 
30 See Rule 2.10 
31 See Rule 4.14 
32 See Rule 4.14 
33 See Rule 4.14 
34 See Rule 4.14 
35 See Rule 4.14 

Page 28

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629263
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629276
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_816&tag=-401290954


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 17 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Seconder’s Speech 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■364.46 When seconding a motion or amendment, a Member may reserve 

their speech until later in the debate. 
 
Content and Length of Other Speeches 
4.47.1 Non aligned Members and a nominated principal speaker from each Political 

Group will be able to speak on each motion with all Members having a right to 
speak to raise additional or different issues in the debate.  

 
▲ ♦ ■374.47.2 Speeches in accordance with 4.47.1 above must be directed to 

the motions under discussion or to a personal explanation, point of order or 
right of reply. The proposer of a motion may speak for no more than 10 
minutes; otherwise no speech may exceed 5 minutes without the consent of 
the Chair. 

 
When a Member may Speak Again 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■384.48 A Member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again 

whilst it is the subject of debate, except: 
 
▲ ♦ ■394.48.1 to speak once on an amendment moved by another Member; 

▲ ♦ ■404.48.2 to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended since 
he last spoke; 

▲ ♦ ■414.48.3 if his first speech was on an amendment moved by another Member, 
to speak on the main issue (whether or not the amendment on which 
he spoke was carried); 

▲ ♦ ■424.48.4 in exercise of a right of reply; 

▲ ♦ ■434.48.5 on a point of order; and 

▲ ♦ ■444.48.6 by way of personal explanation.  
 
Amendments to Motions 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■454.49.1 Subject to Rules 4.49.2 to 4.49.9 below an amendment to a motion 

must be relevant to the motion and will either be: 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ 
■464.49.1.1 

to refer the matter to an appropriate committee, body or 
individual for consideration or reconsideration; 

♣ ▲ ♦ to leave out words; 

 
36 See Rule 4.14 
37 See Rule 4.14 
38 See Rule 4.14 
39 See Rule 4.14 
40 See Rule 4.14 
41 See Rule 4.14 
42 See Rule 4.14 
43 See Rule 4.14 
44 See Rule 4.14 
45 See Rule 4.14 
46 See Rule 4.14 

Page 29



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 18 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

■474.49.1.2 
♣ ▲ ♦ 
■484.49.1.3 

to leave out words and insert or add others; or 

♣ ▲ ♦ 
■494.49.1.4 

to insert or add words or additional recommendations; 

♣ ▲ ♦ 
■504.49.1.5 

to substitute another proposition which is committed to writing 
and sent to received by the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services and / or the Head of Democratic Services no later than 
5 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting.  

 
as long as the effect of Rules 4.49.1.2 to 4.49.1.4 is not to negate or would otherwise 
change the material substance of the original motion. 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■4.49.2 Amendments in accordance with Rule 4.49.1.2 to 4.49.1.4 (adding, 

removing or substituting words), will only be allowed if committed to 
writing and sent to received by the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services and / or the Head of Democratic Services no later than 5 
p.m. on the day prior to the meeting 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■4.49.3 Any amendments received in accordance with these rules will be 
automatically circulated to all Members as soon as reasonably 
practicable. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■4.49.4 The Chair will have a general discretion to allow any amendments 
which do not have the effect of negating or would otherwise change 
the material substance of the original motion, in circumstances 
where the Chair in his / her absolute discretion considers the 
amendment has arisen out of the debate. 

▲ ♦ ■514.49.5 Each amendment will be proposed, seconded, committed to writing and 
handed to the Chair; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■524.49.6 Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time  
and strictly in the order of receipt. No further amendment may be moved 
until the amendment under discussion has been decided. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■534.49.7 If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion 
may be moved. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■544.49.8 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of 
the original motion.  This becomes the substantive motion to which any 
further amendments are moved. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■554.49.9 After an amendment has been carried, the Chair will read out the 
amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there 
are none, put it to the vote. 

 
47 See Rule 4.14 
48 See Rule 4.14 
49 See Rule 4.14 
50 See Rule 4.14 
51 See Rule 4.14 
52 See Rule 4.14 
53 See Rule 4.14 
54 See Rule 4.14 
55 See Rule 4.14 

Page 30

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629321
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629461
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_839&tag=198710093


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 19 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
 
Alteration of Motion 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■564.50.1 A Member may alter a motion which he has moved without notice with the 

consent of both the meeting and the seconder.  The meeting’s consent will 
be signified without discussion. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■574.50.2 Only alterations which could be made as an amendment pursuant to Rule 
4.49.may be made.  

 
Withdrawal of Motion 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■584.51 A Member may withdraw a motion which he has moved with the 

consent of both the meeting and the seconder.  The meeting’s consent will be 
signified without discussion.  No Member may speak on the motion after the 
mover has asked permission to withdraw it unless permission is refused. 

 
Right of Reply 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■594.52.1 If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the right 

of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may not 
otherwise speak on it. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■604.52.2 The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on his 
amendment. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■614.52.3 A Member exercising a right of reply will not introduce any new matter and 
after the reply, a vote shall be taken without further discussion. Members 
may not speak after the owner of a motion has exercised a right of reply, 
except to seek clarification of a particular matter before the owner of the 
motion concludes his or her speech. A Member may not speak after a 
proposition has been voted on except on a point of order relating to it. 

 
Procedural Motions which may be Moved During Debate 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■624.53 When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved 

except the following procedural motions: 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■634.53.1 to withdraw a motion; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■644.53.2 to amend a motion; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■654.53.3 a closure motion under Rule 4.54.5 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■664.53.4 to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules; and 

 
56 See Rule 4.14 
57 See Rule 4.14 
58 See Rule 4.14 
59 See Rule 4.14 
60 See Rule 4.14 
61 See Rule 4.14 
62 See Rule 4.14 
63 See Rule 4.14 
64 See Rule 4.14 
65 See Rule 4.14 
66 See Rule 4.14 

Page 31



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 20 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■674.53.5 to not hear further a Member named under Rule 4.86 or to exclude them 
from the meeting under Rule 4.87. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■684.53.6 to suspend a particular council procedure rule (provided that at least one 
half of the whole number of Members are present). 

 
Closure Motions 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■694.54.1 to proceed to the next business; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■704.54.2 to ask that the question be now put; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■714.54.3 to adjourn a debate; or 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■724.54.4 to adjourn a meeting. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■734.54.5 subject to Rule 4.54.8 below, if a motion to proceed to next business under 
Rule 4.54.1 is seconded and only if the Chair thinks the item has been 
sufficiently discussed, he will give the mover of the original motion a right of 
reply and then put the procedural motion to the vote. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■744.54.6 subject to Rule 4.54.8 below, if a motion that the question be now put 
under Rule 4.54.2 is seconded and only if the Chair thinks the item has 
been sufficiently discussed, he will put the procedural motion to the vote.  If 
it is passed he will give the mover of the original motion a right of reply 
before putting his motion to the vote. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■754.54.7 subject to Rule 4.54.8 below, if a motion to adjourn the debate or to 
adjourn the meeting under Rules 4.54.3 and 4.54.4 is seconded and only if 
the Chair thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed and cannot 
reasonably be so discussed on that occasion, he will put the procedural 
motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original motion the right 
of reply. 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■764.54.8 in the event that a closure motion under Rule 4.54.1 to 4.54.4 is moved 
and seconded, the following procedure will apply in the order set out below: 
 
4.54.8.1 the closure motion will be voted upon without further debate; 
4.54.8.2 if an amendment has been moved and seconded before a 

closure motion has been passed by Full Council, that 
amendment must be discussed immediately but will be subject 
to the following restrictions: 

 
• The debate on the amendment cannot exceed a maximum of 

30 minutes in total, save for the exercising of the Chair’s 
discretion. 

• the proposer will have a maximum of 5 minutes to speak on 
the amendment; 

 
67 See Rule 4.14 
68 See Rule 4.14 
69 See Rule 4.14 
70 See Rule 4.14 
71 See Rule 4.14 
72 See Rule 4.14 
73 See Rule 4.14 
74 See Rule 4.14 
75 See Rule 4.14 
76 See Rule 4.14 

Page 32

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629263
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629276
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_866&tag=1110581227
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_867&tag=1224732192
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_868&tag=1020217637


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 21 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

• the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) will have a maximum of 5 
minutes to speak on the amendment; 

• the seconder and all other speakers will have a maximum of 
3 minutes to speak on the amendment; 
 

4.54.8.3 Full Council will vote on the proposed amendment debated 
under Rule 4.54.8.2 above. 

4.54.8.4 a single new amendment to the substantive motion (as 
amended if appropriate) will be allowed if properly seconded, 
but will be subject to the following restrictions: 

 
• the first new amendment proposed and seconded will be 

considered and no further proposed amendments will be 
considered; 

• The debate on the new amendment cannot exceed a 
maximum of 30 minutes in total, save for the exercising of 
the Chair’s discretion. 

• the proposer will have a maximum of 5 minutes to speak on 
the new amendment; 

• the relevant Portfolio Holder will have a maximum of 5 
minutes to speak on the new amendment; 

• the seconder and all other speakers will have a maximum of 
3 minutes to speak on the new amendment; 
 

4.54.8.5 the new amendment proposed in accordance with Rule 5.54.8.4 
will be voted upon. 

4.54.8.6 the substantive motion (as amended under Rule 4.54.8.2 or 
Rule 4.54.8.4) will be voted upon. 

 
 
Point of Order 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■774.55 A point of order is a request from a Member to the Chair to rule on 

an alleged irregularity in the procedure of the meeting.  A Member may raise 
a point of order at any time by indicating to the Chair by standing that they 
wish to raise a point of order and waiting for the Chair to call them to speak at 
a convenient point at the discretion of the Chair.  A point of order may only 
relate to an alleged breach of these Council Rules of Procedure or the law.  
The Member must indicate the rule or law and the way in which s/he 
considers it has been broken.  The ruling of the Chair on the matter will be 
final. 

 
Personal Explanation 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■784.56 A Member may make a personal explanation at any time. A 

personal explanation may only relate to one of the following: 
 

 
77 See Rule 4.14 
78 See Rule 4.14 

Page 33

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_870&tag=-604545887
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_870&tag=-1664004665


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 22 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■794.56.1 some material part of an earlier speech by the Member in the 
present debate which may appear to have been misunderstood; 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■804.56.2 to reply to an allegation of misconduct made against the Member 
giving the explanation; or 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■814.56.3 to make an apology to the Council. 
 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■824.57 The ruling of the Chair on the admissibility of a personal 
explanation will be final. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■834.58 Points of personal explanation will only be recorded in the 

minutes if the Monitoring Officer considered that such an inclusion would 
provide greater clarity to the minutes. 

 
Declarations of Interest 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■844.59 A Member may at any time declare a personal interest under the 

Members’ Code of Conduct and when a Member makes a declaration s/he 
shall be heard immediately and shall be allowed to make the declaration 
without interruption. 

 
Previous Decisions and Motions 
 
Motion to Rescind a Previous Decision 
▲ ♦ ■854.60.1 A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting 

within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion is 
signed by at least 10 Members. 

▲ ♦ ■864.60.2 Rule 4.37.2 does not apply to a motion under Rule 4.60.1. 
▲ ♦ ■874.60.3 For the sake of clarity rule 4.60.1 does not apply to decisions 

taken by the Cabinet. 
 
Motion Similar to One Previously Rejected 
▲ ♦ ■884.61.1 A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been 

rejected at a meeting in the past six months cannot be moved unless the 
notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least 10 Members.  Once the 
motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a similar motion or 
amendment for six months. 

 
79 See Rule 4.14 
80 See Rule 4.14 
81 See Rule 4.14 
82 See Rule 4.14 
83 See Rule 4.14 
84 See Rule 4.14 
85 See Rule 4.14 
86 See Rule 4.14 
87 See Rule 4.14 
88 See Rule 4.14 

Page 34

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilNoticeofMotion&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_884&tag=-345010551
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilMinimumMembers&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_886&tag=1274824094


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 23 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

▲ ♦ ■894.61.2 Rule 4.37.2 does not apply to a motion under Rule 4.61.1. 

 
89 See Rule 4.14 

Page 35



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 24 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Voting 
 
Majority 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■904.62 Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be 

decided by a simple majority of those Members voting and present in the 
room at the time the question was put. 

 
Chair’s Casting Vote 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■914.63 If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair will 

have a second or casting vote.  There will be no restriction on how the Chair 
chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

 
Method of Voting 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■924.64 Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Rule 4.66 the Chair 

will take the vote by show of hands, or by use of the Council’s electronic 
voting system if any, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the 
meeting. 

 
Ballots 
4.65.1 In respect of Full Council the vote will take place by ballot if 10 Councillors 

present at the meeting demand it. The Chair will announce the numerical 
result of the ballot immediately the result is known. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■934.65.2 In respect of committees the vote will take place by ballot if a 

majority of the Members present at the meeting demand it. The Chair will 
announce the numerical result of the ballot immediately the result is known. 

 
Recorded Vote 
4.66.1 Subject to 4.66.2 below, whenever an electronic voting system is available 

voting at Full Council meetings shall take place by means of that electronic 
voting system and the votes cast by each Councillor will be made available 
on the Council’s website upon publication of the draft minutes for that 
meeting. 

 
4.66.2 In respect of Full Council if 10 Councillors present at the meeting demand it, 

before a vote is taken, the details of the votes cast by each Councillor will 
be made available to the meeting.  

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■944.66.3 In respect of committees and the Cabinet if a majority of Members 

present at the meeting demand it, the names for and against the motion or 
amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and 

 
90 See Rule 4.14 
91 See Rule 4.14 
92 See Rule 4.14 
93 See Rule 4.14 
94 See Rule 4.14 

Page 36

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_890&tag=-479425639
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_891&tag=672076301
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_891&tag=-1736900206
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629550
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_893&tag=1440501487
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilMinimumAbstaining&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_895&tag=24579365


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 25 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

entered into the minutes. A demand for a recorded vote together with a 
demand for a ballot will be voted upon by the committee. 

 
Right to Require Individual Vote to be Recorded 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■954.67 Where any Member requests it immediately after the vote is 

taken, their vote will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they 
voted for or against the motion or abstained from voting. 

 
Voting on Appointments 
 
Voting on appointments to external bodies and organisations 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■964.68.1 If there is one position (in an external body or organisation) to be 

filled by a nominee or representative of the Council and more than one 
person is nominated for that position then the position will be filled by the 
person with the greatest number of votes. If there are equal numbers of 
votes for and against, the Chair will have a second or casting vote. There 
will be no restriction on how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■974.68.2 If there are two or more positions (in an external body or 

organisation) to be filled by nominees or representatives of the Council and 
the number of nominations exceeds the number of such positions, each 
Councillor of the Council will be able to exercise one vote for each such 
position (but may vote only once for each nominee) and the persons to 
whom more votes have been given than other persons up to the number of 
positions to be filled, shall be appointed. If there are equal numbers of 
votes for and against, the Chair will have a second or casting vote. There 
will be no restriction on how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

 
Voting on employee appointments 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■984.69 In the event of there being more than two candidates for an 

appointment and no candidate receives the required majority on the first 
vote, the candidate with the least number of votes will be eliminated and a 
further vote will be taken. This procedure will be repeated until a candidate 
receives the required majority. If more than one candidate has the same 
number of votes and that is the lowest number of votes cast, a vote will be 
taken to decide the candidate to be eliminated from future votes. In the 
event of an equal number of votes being cast at this stage, the Chair will 
have a casting vote. 

 
95 See Rule 4.14 
96 See Rule 4.14 
97 See Rule 4.14 
98 See Rule 4.14 

Page 37



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 26 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Voting on Internal Councillor Appointments 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■994.70 This Rule applies to the appointment of Councillors to positions 

within the Local Authority or to joint committees with other authorities 
including: 

 
4.70.1 the Chair / Vice-Chair / Assistant Vice-Chair of Council; 
4.70.2 Leader; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1004.70.3 the Chair or Vice-Chair of a Committee or Sub-Committee; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1014.70.4 Member of a Committee or Sub-Committee or Panel; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1024.70.5 Member of any other internal Council board, panel or group with 

or without officers; 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1034.70.6 Member of any joint committee, board, panel or group involving 

the Council and one or more local authorities, and / or other public bodies. 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1044.71 If there are more than two Councillors nominated for any position 

to be filled and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, 
then the name of the person with the least number of votes will be taken off 
the list and a new vote taken. The process will continue until there is a 
majority of votes for one person.  Voting under this paragraph will normally 
be conducted by ballot paper. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1054.72 Where there is a tie with two or more candidates receiving the 

least number of votes they both be eliminated from the voting where the 
addition of all the votes cast for the tied candidates would not equal or 
exceed the candidate with the next number of lowest votes.  If the total 
number of votes cast for the candidates who tied would equal or exceed the 
next candidate, then only one of those candidates be eliminated and that 
decision be determined by ballot between the two. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1064.73 Where there is a tie, at the end of the voting process between 

two candidates the Chairman shall either use his / her second or casting 
vote, or require the appointment to be determined by the drawing of lots. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1074.74 This procedure may be varied by agreement of the meeting. 

 
99 See Rule 4.14 
100 See Rule 4.14 
101 See Rule 4.14 
102 See Rule 4.14 
103 See Rule 4.14 
104 See Rule 4.14 
105 See Rule 4.14 
106 See Rule 4.14 
107 See Rule 4.14 

Page 38



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 27 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Minutes 
 
Signing the Minutes 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1084.75 The Chair will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next 

suitable meeting.  The Chair will move that the minutes of the previous 
meeting be signed as a correct record.  The only part of the minutes that 
can be discussed is their accuracy. 

 
No Requirement to Sign Minutes of Previous Meeting at 
Extraordinary Meeting 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1094.76 Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the 

purpose of signing the minutes is an extraordinary meeting110, then the next 
following meeting will be treated as a suitable meeting for the purposes of 
signing of minutes111. 

 
Form of Minutes 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1124.77 Save as provided below the form of the minutes will be a matter 

for the Chief Executive: 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1134.77.1 Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact 

form and order the Chair put them. 
 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1144.77.2 Replies given to questions of which notice has been given under 

Rule 4.30 will be recorded in the minutes. 
 
Record of Attendance 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1154.78 All Members present during the whole or part of a meeting must 

sign their names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every 
meeting to assist with the record of attendance. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1164.79 Members permanently leaving a meeting shall advise the Chair 

or the clerk of their departure so that this can be formally recorded in the 
minutes, including the time of departure and the committee clerk shall so 
record in the minutes of that meeting. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1174.80 Before Members leave a meeting room before the conclusion of 

 
108 See Rule 4.14 
109 See Rule 4.14 
110 a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local Government Act 1972 
111 paragraph 41(1) and (2) of Schedule 12 to the Local Government Act 1972 
112 See Rule 4.14 
113 See Rule 4.14 
114 See Rule 4.14 
115 See Rule 4.14 
116 See Rule 4.14 
117 See Rule 4.14 

Page 39

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_902&tag=-2092189275
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_902&tag=-673088508


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 28 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

business the Chair shall advise that Member of the above requirement. 
 
Exclusion of Public 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1184.81.1 Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in 

accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Section 14 of 
this Constitution or Rules 4.89 and 4.90 (Disturbance by the Public). 

♣ ▲ ♦ ■1194.81.2 Where members of the public have been excluded pursuant to 
Rule 4.81.1, Members may nevertheless remain in the meeting (with the 
exception of confidential meetings of the Standards Committee) unless they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest. 

 
Members’ Conduct 
 
Declarations of Interest 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1204.82 Members must in all matters consider whether they have a 

personal interest (within the meaning within the Members’ Code of 
Conduct) in a matter to be discussed at a meeting, and whether that Code 
of Conduct requires them to disclose that interest and if they conclude that 
it does, must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the discussion or when the interest becomes apparent 
and decide whether they should withdraw from consideration of the matter 
as required by the Code. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1214.83 A Member who is under the Members’ Code of Conduct required 

to disclose the existence and nature of such an interest must complete the 
requisite form provided for that purpose at meetings. 

 
Speaking at Meetings 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1224.84 When a Member speaks at a meeting he/she must address the 

meeting through the Chair.  If more than one Member signifies their 
intention to speak, the Chair will ask one to speak.  Other Members must 
remain silent whilst a Member is speaking unless they wish to make a point 
of order or a point of personal explanation. 

 
Chair Standing 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1234.85 When the Chair stands during a debate, or otherwise indicates 

that the meeting must be silent, any Member speaking at the time must stop 
and all Members must be seated. 

 
118 See Rule 4.14 
119 See Rule 4.14 
120 See Rule 4.14 
121 See Rule 4.14 
122 See Rule 4.14 
123 See Rule 4.14 

Page 40

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref347402550
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref351629613
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_913&tag=1927372964
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_913&tag=-2100376617
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_914&tag=-598143474
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_915&tag=1849479592


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 29 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Member not to be Heard Further 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1244.86 If a Member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chair by 

behaving improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the 
Chair may move that the Member be not heard further.  If seconded, the 
motion will be voted on without discussion. If the motion is passed the 
named Member may not discuss or debate any further business whilst it is 
transacted at the meeting. 

 
Member to Leave the Meeting 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1254.87 If the Member continues to behave improperly after a motion 

under Rule 4.86 is carried, the Chair may move that either the Member 
leaves the meeting or that the meeting is adjourned for a specified period.  If 
seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion. If the motion is 
passed the named Member must leave the room forthwith. 

 
General Disturbance 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1264.88 If there is a general disturbance making orderly business 

impossible, the Chair may adjourn the meeting for as long as he thinks 
necessary. 

 
Disturbance by Public 
 
Removal of Member of the Public 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1274.89 If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chair will 

warn the person concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chair will order 
their removal from the meeting room. 

 
Clearance of Part of Meeting Room 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1284.90 If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room 

open to the public, the Chair may call for that part to be cleared. 
 
Filming, Audio Recording and Use of Social Media During 
Meetings 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1294.91 Filming, audio recording and use of social media is permitted 

during meetings except (a) where children and / or vulnerable adults are 
participating in the debate by way of a presentation, or (b) where meetings 
or parts of meetings which are held in confidential session pursuant to 
Section 14, or (c) where a meeting is being webcast.  

 
124 See Rule 4.14 
125 See Rule 4.14 
126 See Rule 4.14 
127 See Rule 4.14 
128 See Rule 4.14 
129 See Rule 4.14 

Page 41

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_917&tag=226989645
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_917&tag=-1630965955
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_919&tag=-1120666301
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_921&tag=735619956
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_924&tag=-714253592
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_924&tag=408679368
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23PresidingChairMayorSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_926&tag=-476351675


SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 30 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

 
Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules (Rules 4.15 to 
4.95) 
 
Suspension 
4.92 The Council Rules of Procedure may be suspended in accordance with 

Rules 2.9 and 2.10.  
 
Amendment 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1304.93 Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Rules of 

Procedure will,  stand adjourned without discussion and be automatically 
referred to the Democratic Services Committee which will make a 
recommendation to Council PROVIDED ALWAYS that this Rule will not apply 
to any recommendations or report by the Democratic Services Committee 
concerning the variation, revocation or amendment of these Council Rules of 
Procedure. 

 
Officer Advice 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1314.94 Any report placed for decision before Council should contain all 

necessary advice to enable Councillors to take a decision. Reports will be 
circulated in advance of the meeting and if a Councillor requires clarification 
on an issue related to the report, this should be sought prior to the meeting. 

 
♣ ▲ ♦ ■1324.95 Further officer advice will only be available at the meeting of 

Council with the consent of the Chair, in consultation with the Chief 
Executive. If there is a need for further detailed legal or financial advice to be 
provided, the meeting should be adjourned. 

 
Attendance of Cabinet Members at Council Meetings 
4.96 The Leader and Cabinet members in attendance at meetings of Full Council 

will not sit with the other Councillors but shall sit alongside the Chair, Vice-
Chair and Assistant Vice-Chair of the County Council. The only officers to sit 
alongside the Chair shall be the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and 
Clerk unless otherwise authorised to do so by the Chief Executive.   

 
Petitions 
4.97 Where a Councillor delivers a petition to the Council in accordance with Rule 

4.18.18 the Councillor may outline the request by the petitioners, the reason 
for the request and the number of the signatories PROVIDED THAT in any 
event the Councillor may not speak under this Rule for more than 5 minutes. 

 
4.98 Where a member of the public delivers a petition to the Council the 

procedure for the receipt of that petition will be determined by the Chair of 
the Council. 

 
 

130 See Rule 4.14 
131 See Rule 4.14 
132 See Rule 4.14 

Page 42



SECTION 4 – FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
Section 4 – Page 31 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

All Council Seminars / Member Development Sessions 
4.99 The Chair, Vice-Chair or Assistant Vice-Chair of the Council will preside at all 

Council Seminars or Member Development Sessions. Cabinet members with 
responsibility for portfolios which are the subject of the Council Seminar / 
Member Development Session may assist the Chair / Vice-Chair or Assistant 
Vice-Chair in facilitating the seminar / development session but may not 
preside over such a seminar / development session unless authorised by the 
Chair of the Council. 

 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 1 

Introduction 
7.1 The Council is required by Law to discharge certain overview and scrutiny 

functions.  These functions are an essential component of local democracy.  
The Scrutiny Committees should be powerful committees that can contribute 
to the development of Council policies and also hold the Cabinet to account 
for its decisions.  Another key part of the overview and scrutiny role is to 
review existing policies, consider proposals for new policies and suggest 
new policies.  

7.2 Overview and scrutiny should be carried out in a constructive way and 
should aim to contribute to the delivery of efficient and effective services that 
meet the needs and aspirations of local inhabitants.  Scrutiny Committees 
should not shy away from the need to challenge and question decisions and 
make constructive criticism.  

 
Scrutiny Committees  
7.3 In order to achieve this, the Council will appoint three Scrutiny Committees 

(and in addition the Council will participate in a PSB Scrutiny Committee) 
which between them will: 

 
7.3.1 review or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with 

the discharge of any of the Council’s functions whether by the Cabinet 
or another part of the Council; 

7.3.2 make reports or recommendations to the Cabinet or the Council in 
connection with the discharge of any functions; 

7.3.3 consider any matter which affects the Council’s area or its inhabitants; 
and 

7.3.4 exercise the right to call in for reconsideration decisions made, but not 
yet implemented, by the Cabinet and Officers. 

 
Role, Scope and Membership 
7.4 The role, scope and Membership of the Scrutiny Committees are described in 

the table below: 
 
Committee and 
Membership  

Terms of Reference / Areas of Responsibility 

Economy, 
Residents, 

Community and 
Governance 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

A maximum of 14 
Members including: 

13 Councillors – 
Politically Balanced 
 and 1 Non-Voting 
Co-optee for crime 

and disorder 

Vision 2025 objectives: 
 
Economy: 
• Providing support for businesses to grow 
• Promoting Powys as a place to live, visit and do business 
• Improving the availability of affordable and sustainable 

housing 
• Improving our infrastructure to support regeneration and 

attract investment 
• Improving skills and supporting people to get good quality 

jobs 
 
Residents and Community: 

Page 45

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1081&tag=-1881374232
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1081&tag=1901237744
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1082&tag=-192440867
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1082&tag=-192440867
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1083&tag=1898858635
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1084&tag=-1999088656
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1084&tag=-1999088656
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1085&tag=1288477275
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1086&tag=-1529398883
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1088&tag=2105215856
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1090&tag=-1833257218


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 2 

functions  • Strengthening community development and resilience 
• Support communities to be able to do more for themselves 

and reduce the demand on our public services 
• Strengthening our relationship with residents and 

communities 
• Improve our understanding of our residents needs and 

improve our service delivery 
 

SERVICE AREAS: 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
• Finance 
• Legal and Democratic Services 
 
ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
• Property, Planning and Public Protection 
• Highways, Transport and Recycling 
• Housing and Community Development 
 
TRANSFORMATION 
 
• Strategy, Performance and Transformation Programmes 
• Customers and Communications 
• Workforce and OD 
 

PARTNERSHIPS 
 
• Growing Mid Wales 
• Powys Regeneration Partnership 
• TRACC 
• BBNP 
• MWWFRA 
• WLGA 
• Central Wales Infrastructure Collaboration 
• Central Wales Waste Partnership 
• North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency Partnership Board 
• Tourism Partnership Mid Wales 
• Western Valleys Strategic Regeneration Area Board 
• Powys Community Endowment Fund 
 
 

 
Health and Care 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Vision 2025 objectives: 
 
Health and Care: 
• Focussing on well-being 

Page 46



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 3 

A maximum of 14 
Members including: 
14 Councillors – 
Politically Balanced  
 

• Early help and support 
• Providing joined up care 
• Developing a workforce for the future 
• Creating innovative environments 
• Developing digital solutions 
• Transforming in partnership 
 

SERVICE AREAS: 
 
• Children’s Services 
• Adult Services 
• Commissioning (Children and Adults) 
 
TRANSFORMATION 
 
PARTNERSHIPS 
 
• Regional Partnership Board 
• Powys Executive Safeguarding Group 
• Regional Safeguarding Group 
• Youth Justice Board 
• Health, Social Care and well-Being Partnership 
• Powys Community Health Council 
 

Learning and 
Skills Scrutiny 
Committee  
Membership:  
A maximum of 14 
Members including: 
9 Councillors – 
Politically 
Balanced;  
3 parent governor 
representatives;  
1 Church in Wales 
Diocese 
representative;  
1 Roman Catholic 
Church Diocese 
representative, 

Vision 2025 objectives: 
 
Learning and Skills: 
• Improving the educational attainment of all pupils 
• Supporting children and families to have the best start in life 
• Improving our schools infrastructure 
• Improving the skills and employability of young people and 

adults 
 

SERVICE AREAS: 
 
• Education  
 
TRANSFORMATION 
 
PARTNERSHIPS 
 
• ERW 
 

Co-Ordinating 
Committee 
Membership:   
Chairs and Vice 

Functions specified under Rules 7.38 – 7.39 

Page 47



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 4 

Chairs of the 3 
Scrutiny 
Committees; 
Chair and Vice-
Chair of the Audit 
Committee; 
3 Representatives 
of the Cabinet; 
2 Representatives 
of the Executive 
Management Team 
Public Service 
Board Scrutiny 
Committee 

As set out in Rules 7.43 to 7.45 

Audit Committee 
Membership: 
14 Members plus 1 
Independent / Lay 
Member 
 
 

• To approve authority's statement of accounts, income and 
expenditure and balance sheet or record of receipts and 
payments (as the case may be). 

• Ensure the risk management strategy guides the 
programme of internal and external work, to address the 
controls and risk related issues identified 

• Oversee the production of the annual governance 
statement, recommend its adoption to County Council and 
ensure appropriate action is taken to address the issues 
raised 

• To consider and approve the annual audit opinion on 
internal control and the level of assurance given to the 
corporate governance arrangements 

• Approve the annual audit plan, ensuring there is sufficient 
and appropriate coverage, with a strong emphasis on risk 
management and resources are available to implement the 
plan. 

 Receive and review internal audit reports and ensure 
officers respond promptly to the findings. Where necessary 
recommendations to other committees and portfolio holders 
will be made, to ensure action plans are implemented 

 Consider and approve the annual letter, regulatory plan and 
specific reports as agreed. 

 Where necessary ensure action is taken by officers to 
address those issues raised, and if necessary 
recommendations to other committees and portfolio holders 
will be made to address findings and deliver clear 
conclusions 

 Comment on the scope and depth of the external audit 
work, to ensure it gives value for money 

 Assess and approve the annual statement of accounts, 
external audit opinion and management representation in 
relation to annual audit findings 

 Promote effective relationships between external and 

Page 48



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 5 

internal audit, inspection agencies and other relevant 
bodies to ensure the value of audit and inspection is 
enhanced and actively promoted 

• regularly monitor treasury management reports 
 

 
 
Membership of the Audit Committee. 
7.5.1 The Audit Committee will comprise 14 Councillors, appointed to achieve as 

far as reasonably practicable a political balance on the committee plus 1 
voting Lay Member plus such other co-optees as may be appointed by the 
Council (subject to the total number of co-optees being less than one third of 
the total membership).1 

7.5.2 In accordance with Section 82 of The Measure: 
 
7.5.2.1 At least one member of the Audit Committee must be a voting Lay 

Member; 
7.5.2.2 An act of the Audit Committee will be invalid if the membership of the 

committee breaches any of the membership requirements set out in 
Rules 7.5.1 and 7.5.2.1. 

7.5.2.3 The Chair of the Audit Committee is appointed by the Committee at 
the first meeting following the Council’s Annual Meeting and the 
Chair:  
• cannot be a member of the Cabinet;  
• can be a Lay Member or a Co-Opted Member;  
• can only be a member of an executive group if there are no 

opposition groups. (See Rule 7.5.4 below); 
7.5.2.4 The Measure does not require a Cabinet Member to be a 

member of the Audit Committee but a maximum of one 
member of Cabinet (but not the Leader) may be a member of 
the Audit Committee; 

7.5.2.5 The Chair of the Audit Committee may be removed from office 
by a motion to remove which is put on the agenda of the Audit 
Committee pursuant to Rule 4.38.1 

 
7.5.3 The Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee will be appointed annually by the 

Committee at the first meeting following the Council’s Annual Meeting who 
may appoint a Councillor, the Lay Member or a Co-Opted Member. (see Rule 
7.5.4 below) 

7.5.4 The Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee may be removed from office by a 
motion to remove which is put on the agenda of the Audit Committee 
pursuant to Rule 4.38.1 

 
7.5.5 A person presiding at an Audit Committee can only be a member of an 

executive group if there are no opposition groups. 
 

 
1 See Section 82 of The Measure. 

Page 49

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1397&tag=1663747661


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 6 

General Functions 
7.6 Within their terms of reference, Scrutiny Committees will: 
 

7.6.1 review and / or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken in 
connection with the discharge of any function of the authority; 

7.6.2 make reports and / or recommendations to the Full Council and / or the 
Cabinet, and / or any joint committee in connection with the discharge 
of any function of the authority; 

7.6.3 consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants; 
7.6.4 exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not 

yet implemented, by the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet, a 
member of the Cabinet, an officer exercising functions delegated by 
the Cabinet.(See Call-In Procedure – Rule 7.37);  

 
Specific Functions 
 
Policy Development and Review 
7.7 The Scrutiny Committees may: 
 

7.7.1 assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of its Budget 
and Policy Framework by in depth analysis of policy issues, including 
pre-scrutiny of draft or amended policies; 

7.7.2 conduct research, site visits, community and other consultation in the 
analysis of policy issues and possible options; 

7.7.3 question members of the Cabinet and/or Committees and Chief 
Officers from the Council about their views on issues and proposals 
affecting the area; 

7.7.4 liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interest of local people are 
enhanced by collaborative working;  

7.7.5 consider the impact of policies to assess if they have made a 
difference;  

7.7.6 consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 
community participation in the scrutiny of the development of policy 
options; and 

7.7.7 investigate or review a particular matter in depth, reporting their 
conclusions and making any recommendations to the Council or 
Cabinet as appropriate. 

 
Scrutiny 
7.8 Scrutiny Committees may: 
 

7.8.1 review and scrutinise the decisions by and performance of the Cabinet 
and/or Committees and Council Officers in relation to individual 
decisions and over time; 

7.8.2 review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its 
policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas; 

7.8.3 question members of the Cabinet and/or Committees and Chief 
Officers from the Council about their decisions and performance, 

Page 50

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1105&tag=-652985961
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1106&tag=-265041606
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1108&tag=-748472578
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1157&tag=1157580721
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1112&tag=705960637
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1113&tag=882900994
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1115&tag=-140049145


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 7 

whether generally in comparison with service plans and targets over a 
period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or project; 

7.8.4 make recommendations to the Cabinet and/or appropriate Committee 
and/or Council arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process; 

7.8.5 review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the 
area and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the 
Scrutiny Committee and local people about their activities and 
performance;  

7.8.6 question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent); 
7.8.7 review and scrutinise the budget setting process; 
7.8.8 conduct research, site visits, community (and other) consultation for 

the purposes of analysing issues and developing where appropriate; 
possible options, through liaison with the area/community partnerships; 
and 

7.8.9 consider and report on mechanisms to encourage and enhance 
community participation in the development of service delivery options. 

 
Finance 
7.9 Scrutiny Committees may exercise overall responsibility for the finances 

made available to them. 
 
Annual Report 
7.10 The Scrutiny Committees may report annually to the Full Council on their 

workings.  
 
Head of Democratic Services 
7.11 One of the roles of the Head of Democratic Services under section 8 of The 

Measure is to promote the role of the Council’s Scrutiny Committees and to 
promote support and guidance to members and Officers generally about the 
functions of the Scrutiny Committees . 

 
Who May Sit on Scrutiny Committees ? 
7.12.1 Subject to Rule 7.12.2. below all Councillors (except members of the Cabinet) 

may be members of the Scrutiny Committees.  However, no Member may be 
involved in scrutinising on decisions in which s/he has been directly involved. 

7.12.2 In accordance with Section 82 of The Measure no more than one member of 
the Cabinet may be a member of the Audit Committee (but there is no 
requirement for Full Council to appoint a member of the Cabinet to the Audit 
Committee ). The Leader cannot be a member of the Audit Committee. 

 
Co-Optees 
7.13.1 The Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee shall include in its membership 

the following voting representatives: 
 

7.13.1.1 One Church in Wales diocese representative; 
7.13.1.2 One Roman Catholic diocese representative; and 
7.13.1.3 Three parent governor representatives (covering so far as 

practicable the primary, secondary and special needs sectors) 
 

Page 51

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1116&tag=-912351812
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1117&tag=1661438964
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1122&tag=1027942324
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1124&tag=131567581
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1124&tag=-1699250116
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1125&tag=-482494267
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CabExecESMSmartphrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1126&tag=702493876
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1126&tag=-1765355940


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 8 

7.13.2 When matters which are not education matters, which are the responsibility 
of the Cabinet, fall to be considered by the Learning and Skills Scrutiny 
Committee, the co-opted representatives specified in rule 7.13.1 shall not 
vote, although they may stay in the meeting and speak. 

7.13.3 The Health and Care Scrutiny Committee shall include in its membership in 
a non-voting capacity 1 representative from the Police and Crime Panel (or 
from such other body which replaces the Panel), subject to that 
representative not being a Powys County Council representative on the 
Police and Crime Panel. 

7.13.4 In addition to co-optees appointed under rules 7.13.1.1 to 7.13.1.3 above, 
Scrutiny Committees may recommend to Full Council the co-option of other 
persons as voting or non-voting representatives. In exercising or deciding 
whether to exercise a co-option, the Authority must, under section 76 of The 
Measure, have regard to guidance given by the Welsh Ministers and comply 
with directions given by them 

7.13.5 The total number of co-optees on each Scrutiny Committee may not exceed 
more than one third the membership of the committee.2  

 
Who Chairs Scrutiny Committees (other than the Chair of the Audit 
Committee)? 
7.14 The arrangements included in sections 66-75 of The Measure will be followed 

for appointing persons to chair Scrutiny Committees as set out in Rule 4.6.6 
(other than the Chair of the Audit Committee who will be appointed in 
accordance with Rule 7.5.2.3)3. 

 
Role of the Chair of Scrutiny Committees  
7.15.1  The chairs of the Scrutiny Committees will liaise with the Cabinet and the 

Head of Paid Service and will supervise the work programme for their 
Scrutiny Committee and identify cross cutting themes arising from the 
various Scrutiny Committees . 

7.15.2 In summary, therefore, the Chair will: 
 

7.15.2.1 be accountable for delivering effective scrutiny; 
7.15.2.2 will regularly monitor the work programmes for their Scrutiny 

Committee; and 
7.15.2.3 will liaise with the Cabinet on issues affecting the scrutiny work 

programme.  
Work Programme 
7.16 The Co-ordinating Committee will be responsible for setting the work 

programme for each scrutiny committee and in doing so they should take into 
account the Cabinet Forward Work Programme and focus on strategic and 
important issues. Any requests from scrutiny members for matters to be 
scrutinised should be sent to the  Co-ordinating Committee for consideration. 

 
Joint Scrutiny Committees  

 
2 Paragraph 8.19 Statutory Guidance from the Local Government Measure 2011 (issued by Welsh Government 
June 2012) 
3 For provisions relating to the Chair of the Audit Committee See Rule 7.3.2(b)(ii) above. 

Page 52

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1132&tag=-2032163419
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1132&tag=-2032163419
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1133&tag=1815148425
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1134&tag=-2123939587
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1134&tag=579075557
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1138&tag=-616901390
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1146&tag=-1039565912


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 9 

7.17 Under section 58 of The Measure, regulations may be made to permit two or 
more local authorities to appoint a joint Scrutiny Committee. This is set out in 
the Local Authority (Joint Overview and Scrutiny) (Wales) Regulations 2012. 

 
Rules of Procedure and Debate (“Scrutiny Procedure Rules”)  
7.18 Rules 7.18 to 7.37 (inclusive) shall be known as the Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

and will apply to meetings of the Scrutiny Committees. 
  
 
What will be the Number and Arrangements for Scrutiny Committees ? 
7.19.1 Subject to Rules 7.43 to 7.45 the Council will have three Scrutiny 

Committees set out in the table in Rule 7.3 and will appoint to them as it 
considers appropriate from time to time.  The Co-ordinating Committee may 
appoint smaller groups (Member and Officer Working Groups) to carry out 
detailed examination of particular topics for report back to the committee.  
Such groups may be appointed for a fixed period on the expiry of which they 
shall cease to exist or may be appointed on a task and finish basis. Such 
Member and Officer Working Groups should work on a non-political basis 
and wherever possible should comprise as many political groups as 
practicable. In addition, in the case of urgency, the Chair of the relevant 
scrutiny committee and the Co-ordinating Committee can establish a 
Member and Officer Working Group 

7.19.2 The terms of reference / areas of responsibility of the various Scrutiny 
Committees will be as set out in Rule 7.4 above. 

7.19.3 Each Scrutiny Committee (with the exception of the Public Service Board 
Scrutiny Committee) will be Chaired by a chair appointed by the Full 
Council from the membership of that Scrutiny Committee and there will be 
cross party membership of all Scrutiny Committees.  

 
Meetings of the Scrutiny Committees  
7.20.1 The three Scrutiny Committees will meet  on a 6 weekly cycle.  
7.20.2 The Audit Committee must also meet if: 

(a) the Full Council resolves that the Committee should meet; or 
(b) at least one third of the members of the Audit Committee requisition a 

meeting by one or more notices in writing to the chair. 
7.20.3 In addition, extraordinary meetings may be called from time to time by: 

7.20.3.1 the Full Council by resolution; or 
7.20.3.2 the relevant Scrutiny Committee by resolution; or 
7.20.3.3 the chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee; or 
7.20.3.4 any 5 members of the relevant Scrutiny Committee; or 
7.20.3.5 the Head of Paid Service; or 
7.20.3.6 the Monitoring Officer; or 
7.20.3.7 the Section 151 Officer; 
 
as s/he / they considers necessary or appropriate. 

 
Quorum 
7.21 The quorum of a meeting will be 25% of the number of members of that 

Scrutiny Committee. During any meeting, if the chair declares that there is not 

Page 53

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1147&tag=1609228541
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1149&tag=2040149367
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=_Ref350432572&tag=-1764874512
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OAShowmany&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1151&tag=584532556
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1151&tag=565775657
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1151&tag=565775657
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref352054302
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1152&tag=-640184648
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1152&tag=-640184648
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1154&tag=-937223129
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1163&tag=-603966156
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1143&tag=-1348133381


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 10 

a quorum present, then the meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining 
business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the chair. If s/he does 
not fix a date, the remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary 
meeting of the Scrutiny Committee.. 

 
Business at First Meeting Following the Annual Meeting of the County Council 
7.22 The first meeting of a scrutiny committee following the Annual Meeting of the 

County Council will (as may be appropriate): 
 

7.22.1 elect a chair of the Audit Committee and the PSB Scrutiny 
Committee; 

7.22.2 elect a person to preside if the chair of the Committee is not present; 
7.22.3 elect the vice-chair of the Committee 
7.22.4 make appointments to sub-committees authorised by Full Council 

(see Rules 4.6.1; 4.6.7; 4.15.7; and 4.18.6); such appointments to be 
in accordance with the wishes of the groups unless the committee 
decides unanimously to dis-apply the political balance requirements; 

7.22.5 make recommendations to the Co-ordinating Committee for the 
establishment or re-establishment of Member and Officer Task and 
Finish Working Groups and make appointments thereto as 
appropriate; 

7.22.6 deal with those items of business listed in Rule 7.24 below as may be 
appropriate. 

 
The order of business, with the exception of items 7.22.1 and 7.22.2 may be 
altered by the chair. 

 
Business at Other Meetings 
7.23 At all other meetings of committee, the committee will (as may be 

appropriate) 
 

7.23.1 elect a person to preside if the chair and vice-chair of the 
Committee are not present; 

7.23.2 elect the chair of the Audit Committee or the PSB Scrutiny 
Committee in the event of there being a vacancy 

7.23.3 elect a vice-chair of the Committee in the event of there being a 
vacancy; 

7.23.4 receive declarations of interest (including whipping declarations); 
7.23.5 make appointments to sub-committees and Member and Officer 

Task and Finish Groups in the event of there being a vacancy; 
7.23.6 receive apologies for absence; 
7.23.7 approve the minutes of the last meeting; 
7.23.8 receive any announcements from the chair; 
7.23.9 receive reports from the Cabinet and / or from any other 

committees, and / or from officers; 
7.23.10 make recommendations to the Cabinet or Full Council; 
7.23.11 deal with any business outstanding from the last meeting; 
7.23.12 (where the Leader or a Cabinet member attends a meeting of the 

committee) to receive a presentation from the Leader or a Cabinet 

Page 54



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 11 

member and / or to put questions to, and to receive responses from 
the Leader or a Cabinet member; 

7.23.13 put questions to the chair or relevant officers of the Council where 
appropriate on items of business before the committee and to 
receive responses. 

7.23.14 receive reports from sub-committees and Member and Officer Task 
and Finish Groups; 

7.23.15 to consider requests from members of the committee for items of 
business to be recommended to the Co-ordinating Committee for 
consideration at a future meeting or at the meeting when the 
request is made if the chair is satisfied that the matter is urgent (the 
reason for the urgency being recorded in the minutes), and that the 
committee is able to have the necessary professional advice of 
officers; 

7.23.16 consider motions without notice as set out in the Full Council 
Procedure Rules in Section 4 of this Constitution;  

7.23.17 review the Committee’s Work Programme for the forthcoming year 
and make such recommendations to the Co-ordinating Committee 
as are necessary; 

7.23.18 consider such other business specified in the summons to the 
meeting; 

7.23.19 consider other business, not specified in the summons as the chair 
considers urgent, subject to the nature of the urgency being 
specified in the minutes; 

7.23.20 to exclude the public for the consideration of any item in 
accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules; 

 
The order of business, with the exception of items 7.23.1 to 7.23.4 may be 
altered by the chair. 

 
Agenda Items 
7.24.1 Any member of a Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to give notice to the 

chair of the Scrutiny Committee that s/he wishes an item relevant to the 
functions of that Scrutiny Committee to be recommended to the Co-
ordinating Committee for inclusion on the agenda for the next available 
meeting.   

7.24.2 Scrutiny Committees shall also respond, as soon as their work programme 
permits, to requests from the Full Council and/or the Cabinet to review 
particular areas of Council activity.  Where they do so, the particular Scrutiny 
Committee shall report their findings and any recommendations back to the 
Cabinet and/or Council as appropriate.  The Council and/or the Cabinet shall 
consider the report of the Scrutiny Committee  and respond (if appropriate) 
as soon as possible or at the latest within 2 months of the date of the 
meeting. 

 
Policy Review and Development 
7.25.1 The role of Scrutiny Committees in relation to the development of the 

Council’s Budget and Policy Framework is set out in detail in the Budget 
and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in Section 15. 

Page 55

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1168&tag=885057579
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=-1129833923
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=-584462370
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=1710140425
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=1710140425
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=-703112864
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=1425094344
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1170&tag=-1528265087
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1172&tag=-805293757
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref347402605


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 12 

7.25.2 In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other matters not 
forming part of its Budget and Policy Framework, Scrutiny Committees may 
make proposals to the Cabinet for developments in so far as they relate to 
matters within their terms of reference. 

7.25.3 Scrutiny Committees may hold enquiries and investigate the available 
options for future direction in policy development and may appoint advisers 
and assessors to assist them in this process.  They may go on site visits, 
conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, commission research and do 
all other things that they reasonably consider necessary to inform their 
deliberations.  They may ask witnesses to attend to address them on any 
matter under consideration and may pay any advisers, assessors and 
witnesses a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so. 

 
Reports from Scrutiny Committees  
7.26.1 All formal reports from Scrutiny Committees will be submitted for 

consideration by the Cabinet (if the proposals are consistent with the 
existing Budget and Policy Framework), or to the Council as appropriate 
(e.g. if the recommendation would require a departure from or a change to 
the agreed Budget and Policy Framework). 

7.26.2 If a Scrutiny Committee cannot agree on one single final report to the 
Council or Cabinet as appropriate, one minority report may be prepared and 
submitted for consideration by Full Council or Cabinet with the majority 
report. 

7.26.3 A Scrutiny Committee may publish any non-confidential report. 
 
Making sure that Scrutiny Reports are considered by Full Council or Cabinet  
7.27.1 The reports of Scrutiny Committees shall be referred to the Cabinet (as 

determined by the Scrutiny Committee) within one month or to the next 
meeting of Full Council (where applicable). Where an item is not considered 
by Full Council or Cabinet within the period specified above, the Chair of 
Council or the Leader or Portfolio Holder will give an explanation of the 
reasons to the chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee as soon as 
practicable. 

7.27.2 Where a scrutiny report is referred to the Cabinet the relevant Portfolio 
Holder(s) and senior officers will attend the meeting of the Cabinet wherever 
possible.  The Cabinet will prepare a written response to the scrutiny report, 
including an action plan where appropriate, as soon as possible or at the 
latest within 2 months of the date of the meeting. The Portfolio Holder(s) 
and senior officers if requested to do so will attend a future meeting of that 
Scrutiny Committee to present the Cabinet’s response. 

 
Rights of Members of Scrutiny Committees to Documents 
7.28.1 Members of Scrutiny Committees have the additional right to documents, 

and to notice of meetings as set out in the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules in Section 14 of this Constitution. 

7.28.2 Nothing in this paragraph prevents more detailed liaison between the 
Cabinet and the Scrutiny Committees as appropriate depending on the 
particular matter under consideration.  

 

Page 56

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1173&tag=-77585339
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1173&tag=-56945100
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1174&tag=608082475
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1175&tag=-285014120
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1176&tag=-469428659
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1176&tag=2091359975
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1177&tag=1368180047
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1177&tag=-1441672474
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1177&tag=-1883450928
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1179&tag=1545836307
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1180&tag=1981746820
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1180&tag=924992218
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1180&tag=2056546918
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1180&tag=-1033902165
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1181&tag=-481415326
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1181&tag=-1275068869
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1182&tag=-792510419
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1183&tag=-1445378201
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/export#_Ref347402550
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1184&tag=-864919184
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1184&tag=-1170983925


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 13 

Members and Senior Officers Giving Account 
7.29.1 Scrutiny Committees / Working Groups may scrutinise and review decisions 

made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any Council 
functions within its remit.  As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling 
the Scrutiny role, it may require any member of the Cabinet, the Chief 
Executive and/or any senior Officer to attend before it to explain the 
following matters within their remit: 
7.29.1.1 any particular decision or series of decisions; and / or 
7.29.1.2 the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; 

and/or 
7.29.1.3 the implementation of decision(s) and or Council policy 

 
and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required. 

 
7.29.2 Where there are concerns about the appropriateness of the Officer who 

should attend, the relevant chief Officer shall discuss this with the 
appropriate Scrutiny Chair or Vice Chair with a view to achieving 
consensus. 

7.29.3 Where any Cabinet Member is required to attend Scrutiny Committees  / 
Working Group under this provision, the Chair of that Committee  / Working 
Group will inform the relevant Cabinet Member   in writing at least 5 working 
days’ before the meeting at which s/he is required to attend (unless agreed 
otherwise).  The written notice  will state the nature of the item on which he 
or she is required to attend to give account and whether any papers are 
required to be produced for the Committee. 

7.29.4 Where any Officer is required to attend Scrutiny Committees / Working 
Group under this provision, the Chair of that Committee / Working Group will 
inform the relevant Head of Service.  The relevant Head of Service shall 
inform the Officer, if necessary in writing, giving at least 5 working days’ 
notice of the meeting at which s/he is required to attend (unless agreed 
otherwise).  The notice will state the nature of the item on which he or she is 
required to attend to give account and whether any papers are required to 
be produced for the Committee. 

7.29.5 For the purposes of attendances of members or Officers at the Audit 
Committee only, in accordance with Section 83(6) of The Measure, a person 
is not obliged to answer any question which the person would be entitled to 
refuse to answer in, or for the purposes of, proceedings in a court in 
England and Wales. 

7.29.6 Where the account to be given to a Scrutiny Committee / Working Group will 
require the production of a report, then the Member or Officer concerned will 
be given sufficient notice to allow for its preparation. 

7.29.7 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the Member or Officer is unable to 
attend on the required date, then the Scrutiny Committee / Working Group 
shall in consultation with the Member or Officer arrange an alternative date 
for attendance. 

 
Attendance by Others 
 
Attendance of Leader or Cabinet Member 

Page 57

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1186&tag=1565845267
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1186&tag=-1290196220
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1192&tag=-716468521
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASMinWDNotice&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1192&tag=-1150615714
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1192&tag=-716468521
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASMinWDNotice&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1192&tag=-1150615714
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1193&tag=821906184
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1194&tag=-913800893


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 14 

7.30 Subject to the Members’ Code of Conduct, the Leader or a Cabinet member 
in the role of the Leader’s representative may attend and speak but not vote 
at meetings of Scrutiny Committees where the Leader has a specific issue to 
raise with the committee. The attendance of a Cabinet member in all other 
cases will be at the invitation of the chair or the Scrutiny Committee.  

 
Attendance of Members at Committee Meetings 
7.31.1 In addition to their right to attend all meetings of committees of which they are 

members, Members (with the exception of Cabinet members) shall have the 
right to attend any meeting of a Scrutiny Committee and to remain present 
notwithstanding the passing of a resolution to exclude the public. 

7.31.2 Such attendance shall be as observer only, with no right to vote, the 
attendance not being included in the relevant quorum, and no right to speak, 
provided that the chair in his / her discretion may permit the member to speak 
on a particular issue. 

7.31.3 Such right of attendance is subject to the Councillor not having a Prejudicial 
Interest in the matter under discussion under the Members’ Code of Conduct 
and subject to any legal provisions and any limitations or restrictions within 
this Constitution. 

 
Others 
7.32 Scrutiny Committees / Working Group may invite people other than those 

people referred to in Rules 7.29 and 7.30 above to address it, discuss issues 
of local concern and/or answer questions.  It may for example wish to hear 
from residents, stakeholders, members and officers in other parts of the 
public sector and shall invite such people to attend. 

 
The Party Whip in Scrutiny 
7.33 If a member of a Scrutiny Committee is subject to a party whip in respect of 

an issue to be considered by it, that member must declare the existence of 
the whip and the nature of it before the commencement of deliberations on 
the matter.  The declaration, and the detail of the whipping arrangements, 
shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. The member declaring the 
existence of a whip may speak at the meeting but is not entitled to vote on the 
question.4 

 
Procedure at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 
7.34.1 The Rules of Procedure at Scrutiny Committees will be the same as the Full 

Council Procedure Rules set out in Section 4 of this Constitution except that 
the chair of the meeting may allow the rules of debate to be relaxed to enable 
a full contribution by those attending the meeting whether members of a 
Scrutiny Committee or in any other capacity which allows them to contribute 
to the worth of the meeting. 

7.34.2 Scrutiny Committees may ask people to attend to give evidence or answer 
questions about any items on their agenda.  Meetings should be conducted 
in accordance with the following principles: 

 
 

4 Section 78(1) of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011. 

Page 58

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1196&tag=1671211048
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1217&tag=707007562
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1218&tag=-159296739
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1225&tag=1238934708
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1225&tag=-1056749437
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1226&tag=-283519094


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 15 

7.34.2.1 that the business be conducted fairly and all members of the 
Scrutiny Committee be given the opportunity to ask questions of 
attendees, and to contribute and speak; 

7.34.2.2 that those assisting by giving evidence be treated with respect and 
courtesy; 

7.34.2.3 that the business be conducted as efficiently as possible. 
 
7.34.3 Following any investigation or review, a Scrutiny Committee shall prepare a 

report, for submission to the Cabinet and/or Full Council as appropriate and 
shall make its report and findings public. 

 
 
Matters within the Remit of more than one Scrutiny Committee  
7.35 Where a matter for consideration by  Scrutiny Committees falls within the 

remit of more than one Scrutiny Committee the decision as to which Scrutiny 
Committee is to consider the matter will be resolved by the respective Chairs 
or, the Co-ordinating Committee, or if they fail to agree,  the decision will be 
made by Monitoring Officer. 

 
Call-In Procedure Rules 
7.36A The Call-In Procedure Rules set out in this Rule 7.36 do not apply to the 

Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee. For the sake of clarity the Public 
Service Board Scrutiny Committee does not have the ability to call-in 
decisions / recommendations made by the Public Service Board. 

7.36B For the purpose of Rule 7.36, where the Monitoring Officer and / or the 
Chief Finance Officer is the author of the report  which is the subject of a 
potential Call-In to scrutiny , that officer cannot undertake the decisions 
described in Rules 7.36.3 and 7.36.15 in which event, the decision will be 
taken by the Chief Executive  in consultation with the Deputy Monitoring 
Officer and / or Deputy Chief Finance Officer as appropriate. 

7.36.1 Where a decision is made by the Cabinet or an individual member of the 
Cabinet or a Committee of the Cabinet or under joint arrangements with 
other public bodies, the decision shall be published by the Monitoring Officer, 
including where possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the 
main offices of the Council normally within 2 working days of it being made.  
All Councillors will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within 
the same time scale.  

7.36.2 The communication to Councillors sending them the decision will (a) bear the 
date on which the decision is published and (b) will specify the date when the 
decision will come into force (subject to Rule 7.37.3) and may then be 
implemented, on the expiry of five clear days (the “Call-in Period”) after the 
date of publication of the decision, unless the appropriate Scrutiny 
Committee objects to it and calls it in for review within the Call-in Period. 

7.36.3 Subject to Rule 7.36B above, and during the Call-in Period the Monitoring 
Officer shall call-in a decision for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee 
if so requested in the specified format (“the Call-In Request”5) by the chair or 
4 members of a Scrutiny Committee PROVIDED THAT the Monitoring 

 
5 See Appendix 1 to this Section. 

Page 59

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1227&tag=1248674063
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1230&tag=-1209292028
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1230&tag=1793227903
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1231&tag=1129018049
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1232&tag=1293634231
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASRespectiveChairs&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1232&tag=1748129270
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1199&tag=-1577431552
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1199&tag=-247344177
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1199&tag=-341048192
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23HLDSSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1199&tag=673109103
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASDecisionPublished&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1199&tag=254810306
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1200&tag=-1242241853
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1200&tag=-1242241853
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-197573014
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-197573014
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASMinimumRequestMO&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=1071467322
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASMinimumRequestMO&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=1071467322
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=1224141432


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 16 

Officer and / or the Chief Finance Officer are satisfied that the following 
conditions are met:  
 

 
7.36.3.1 the decision or action was contrary to the policy framework or 

budget, or fell outside the functions of the Cabinet; or 
7.36.3.2 the Cabinet or decision maker had not followed agreed procedures 

or failed to consult (where required) before reaching its decision; 
or 

7.36.3.3 the Cabinet had not followed, or had failed to take account of, any 
legal obligations, including regulations or statutory guidance 
governing the Council’s actions, or other guidance adopted by the 
Council. 

 
7.36.4 Where  the Monitoring Officer and / or the Chief Finance Officer are satisfied 

that one or more of the conditions set out in  rule 7.36.3 above have been 
met, they shall produce a written report setting out the reasons for coming to 
this conclusion and the Monitoring Officer (subject to Rule 7.36B above) will 
then arrange for a “Call-In Notice”6 to be issued in accordance with Rule 
7.36.5 below. 
 

7.36.5 A Call-In Notice must contain the following: 
 

7.36.5.1 details of the condition set out in rule 7.36.3 above being relied 
upon; 

7.36.5.2 the reasons why it is believed one or more of the conditions are 
satisfied; 

 
7.36.6 The Monitoring Officer (subject to Rule 7.36B above) shall call a meeting of 

that Scrutiny Committee on such a date as s/he may determine, where 
possible after consultation with the chair or vice chair of that the appropriate  
Scrutiny Committee , and usually within 10 clear days of the receipt of the 
Call-In Request (the “Scrutiny Period”) (only in exceptional circumstances will 
the chair of the Scrutiny Committee consider extending this time limit and the 
period of extension cannot in any circumstances exceed a further 5 clear 
days). 

7.36.7 If, having considered the decision, the Scrutiny Committee remains 
concerned about the decision, then the Committee may refer it back to the 
decision making body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of 
its concerns or refer the matter to Full Council for review.  If the decision is 
referred back to the decision maker, the decision maker shall then 
reconsider the decision within 10 clear days of the date of the reference. 
That decision making body or person shall choose whether to amend the 
decision or not before reaching a final decision and implementing it. The final 
decision cannot be the subject of a further call-in.  

7.36.8 If a Scrutiny Committee does not meet within the Scrutiny Period the 
decision shall take effect and be implemented on the next day following the 

 
6 See Appendix 2 to this Section. 

Page 60

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-448584884
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-477738932
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASCLearWD&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-1357492366
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-766529158
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1202&tag=-682746084
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASReconsider&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1202&tag=-890681152
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1203&tag=350665178


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 17 

expiry of the Scrutiny Period (as extended pursuant to Rule 7.36.6 as the 
case may be). 

7.36.9 If following an objection to the decision, a Scrutiny Committee does not refer 
the matter back to the decision making person or body or to Full Council, the 
decision shall take effect on the date of the Scrutiny Committee meeting. 

7.36.10 If a Scrutiny Committee refers the matter to Full Council, the Monitoring 
Officer (subject to Rule 7.36 above) shall call a meeting of the Full Council 
on such a date as s/he may determine, where possible after consultation 
with the chair or vice chair of the Full Council, and usually within 10 clear 
days of the receipt of the referral (the “Council Scrutiny Period”) (only in 
exceptional circumstances will the chair of the Full Council consider 
extending this time limit and the period of extension cannot in any 
circumstances exceed a further 5 clear days). 

7.36.11 If, having considered the decision, the Full Council remains concerned about 
the decision, then the Full Council may refer it back to the decision making 
body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its concerns.  If 
the decision is referred back to the decision maker, the decision maker shall 
then reconsider the decision within 10 clear days of the date of the 
reference. That decision making body or person shall choose whether to 
amend the decision or not before reaching a final decision and implementing 
it. The final decision cannot be the subject of a further call-in.  

7.36.12 If the Full Council does not meet within 10 clear days of the date of the 
reference (“the Council Scrutiny Period”), the decision shall take effect on the 
day after the expiry of the Council Scrutiny Period. 

7.36.13 If the Full Council does not refer the matter back to the decision making 
person or body, the decision shall take effect on the date of the Full Council 
meeting. 

7.36.14 In order to ensure that call-in is not abused, nor causes unreasonable delay, 
certain limitations are to be placed on its use.  These are: 

 
7.36.14.1 each Scrutiny Committee may only call-in a total of five decisions 

per year; 
7.36.14.2 where a Call-in Request has been made by four members of a 

Scrutiny Committee in accordance with Rule 7.36.3 those four  
members must come from at least two political groups, or one 
political group and / or one or more non-aligned Councillor(s); 

7.36.14.3 once a Member (the chair of the Scrutiny Committee excepted) 
has signed a Call-in Request s/he may not do so again until the 
period of six months has expired. 

7.36.14.4 no Education Co-opted members may request a decision be 
called in. 

7.36.14.5 only decisions involving expenditure or reduction in service over 
the threshold value for tenders set out in Section 17 of this 
Constitution may be called-in. 

7.36.14.6 the decision being called-in, or broadly the same decision, has 
been called in during the last 6 months. 

7.36.14.7 the provisions of Rule 7.37.1 apply (Urgency) 
 
7.36.15 Subject to Rule 7.36B above, Tthe Monitoring Officer and / or the Chief 

Page 61

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1203&tag=350665178
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASCLearWD&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1201&tag=-1357492366
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1202&tag=-682746084
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OASReconsider&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1202&tag=-890681152
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1207&tag=-151043968


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 18 

Finance Officer may veto any request for call-in if it falls outside the remit of 
this scheme. 

7.36.16 Save in exceptional circumstances all members of a Scrutiny Committee 
requesting a matter be called in must attend the meeting at which the matter 
is being considered. 

7.36.17 For the avoidance of doubt a Call-In remains valid even if one or more of the 
members who have signed the Call-in Request do not attend the Scrutiny 
Meeting at which the Call-in is debated. 

 
Call-In and Urgency 
7.37.1 The call-in procedure set out in Rule 7.36 above shall not apply where the 

decision being taken is urgent.  A decision will be urgent if:    
 

7.37.1.1 any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process would seriously 
prejudice the Council’s or other public interests; and 

7.37.1.2 Subject to Rule 7.37.3 below the Head of Paid Service and / or the 
Monitoring Officer and / or the Chief Finance Officer certifies in 
writing the reasons why any delay caused by a call-in process 
could seriously prejudice the Council, or the public interest; and 

7.37.1.3 the chair of the relevant Scrutiny Committee agrees in writing to the 
decision being treated as a matter of urgency.  In the absence of 
the Scrutiny chair then either the Scrutiny vice chair or the chair of 
Council may agree to the decision being treated as a matter of 
urgency; and 

7.37.1.4 the record of the decision, and notice by which it is made public, 
shall state that the decision is an urgent one, and that the urgency 
of the matter has been approved by the Head of Paid Service and / 
or the Monitoring Officer and / or the Chief Finance Officer (subject 
to Rule 7.36B above) and by the chair of the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee or Scrutiny vice-chair or the chair of Council. 

 
7.37.2 
 

Decisions taken as a matter of urgency can be implemented forthwith but 
must be reported at the next available meeting of the relevant Scrutiny 
Committee, together with the reasons for urgency, such report to the scrutiny 
committee must contain the written certification as required in Rule 7.37.1.2 
above. 

 
7.37.3 For the purposes of Rules 7.37.1.2 above the officer certifying the reasons 

why any delay caused by a call-in process could seriously prejudice the 
Council, or the public interest cannot be an officer whose report is being 
considered under the Rule 7.37 procedure. 

 
Co-ordinating Committee. 
 
Role, Scope and Membership. 
7.38 
 
7.38.1 Membership: Chairs and Vice-Chairs of the following committees: 

 

Page 62

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilPresidingMember.no&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=1707861511
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=2102214611
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilPresidingMember.no&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=1330190419
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=2079289726
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilPresidingMember.no&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=-2087015413
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=-2054248849
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilPresidingMember.no&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=1707861511
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=2102214611
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitText?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23CouncilPresidingMember.no&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=1330190419
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ChairMayorSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1214&tag=-2054248849


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 19 

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee; 
Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee; 
Economy, Residents, Community and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee; 
Audit Committee; 
 
For the sake of clarity the Chair of the Public Service 
Board Scrutiny Committee will not be a member of the 
Co-ordinating Committee. 
 
3 Representatives of the Cabinet to be appointed by the 
Leader 
 
2 Representatives of the Executive Management Team 
 

7.38.2 Chair : Elected annually in rotation by the Committee.  
7.38.3 Vice-Chair: Elected annually in rotation by the Committee.  
7.38.4 Meetings: Meetings of the Committee will be held monthly. 

Additional meetings of the Committee can be called with 
the consent of the Chair.  

7.38.5 Notes of 
Meetings: 

Agendas and notes of the meetings will be made 
available to Members.  

 
Terms of Reference: 
7.39 The Co-ordinating Committee will: 
 

7.39.1 co-ordinate the work programmes of the Scrutiny Committees; 
7.39.2 assess potential items for their suitability for a scrutiny review, and 

allocate those items if suitable to the appropriate scrutiny 
committee  / Working Group for review; 

7.39.3 consider items referred from the Scrutiny Committees for inclusion 
in the scrutiny work programme; 

7.39.4 ensure the co-ordination of the Scrutiny Committees’ Work 
Programmes with the Cabinet Work Programme; 

7.39.5 receive the final report on a review undertaken by scrutiny working 
groups prior to its submission to the Cabinet; 

7.39.6 consider any requests for the establishment of a Member and 
Officer Working Group; 

7.39.7 consider the Wales Audit Office Annual Improvement Report and 
consider any matters for inclusion in the Scrutiny Committees’ 
Work Programmes; 

7.39.8 to ensure in conjunction with the Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Committee that there is no duplication of work between the County 
Council scrutiny committees, the Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Committee and any other joint scrutiny arrangements with other 
authorities; 

7.39.9 such other matters which relate to or affect the operation of the 
Scrutiny Committees. 

7.39.10 Review the Scrutiny Committee structure on a regular basis. 

Page 63



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 20 

 
Finance Panel. 
 
Role, Scope and Membership. 
7.40 
 
7.40.1 Membership: The Panel should be no larger than 10 Members to 

include the following: 
 
Chairs of the scrutiny committees (excluding the PSB 
Scrutiny Committee). 
 
Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Leaders of the Opposition groups i.e. those political 
groups which are not represented on the Cabinet. 
 
Other representatives from the Audit Committee one of 
which should be the Independent “Lay” Member 
appointed by the Audit Committee. 
 

7.40.2 Chair : The Chair of the Panel will be elected from the Panel’s 
membership, (excluding the Portfolio Holder for Finance).  

7.40.3 Vice-Chair: The Vice-Chair of the Panel will be elected from the 
Panel’s membership.  

7.40.4 Meetings: Meetings of the Panel will be held on a schedule to be 
determined by the Panel.  

7.40.5 Reports by the 
Panel: 

The Panel will make reports on its findings to the Cabinet 
and where necessary Full Council.  

 
Terms of Reference: 
7.41 The Panel will concentrate on strategic financial matters including the 

following: 
 

7.41.1 assist with the delivery of financial plans to support change and 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy to inform policy changes, and 
providing robust challenge and accountability; 

7.41.2 consider the robustness of the evidence base upon which the 
MTFS and Council budget are predicated; 

7.41.3 review and scrutinise: 
• Assumptions underlying the budget strategy; 
• The Medium Terms Financial Strategy / Finance Resource 

Model; 
• Budget Assumptions; 
• Annual Local Government Settlement and any legislative 

changes affecting local government; 
• Draft Budget and Impact Assessments; 
• Financial aspects of the Risk Register; 

Page 64



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 21 

• Financial Monitoring; 
7.41.4 provide evidence based recommendations to the Cabinet on its 

findings; 
7.41.5 develop a forward work programme based on the budget timetable 

and the Council’s medium term financial strategy; 
 
Public Service Board Scrutiny Committee. 
 
7.42 Members on the Co-ordinating Committee shall appoint two Members to act 

as representatives of the Council on the Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Committee.  

 
7.43 In addition Members on the the Co-ordinating committee shall appoint a 

substitute for each of the two Members of the Public Service Board Scrutiny 
Committee appointed under Rule 7.43 above, such substitute shall not be a 
member of the Public Service Board. 

 
7.44 The Terms of Reference and Membership of the Public Service Board 

Scrutiny Committee are set out in the “Arrangements for the Scrutiny of the 
Public Service Board in Powys” document approved by Full Council from time 
to time. 

 
Councillor Call for Action 
7.45.1 The Councillor Call for Action is a mechanism for enabling Councillors to 

bring matters of local concern to the attention of the Council via the Scrutiny 
process.  It should be an option of “last resort”. 

7.45.2 Any Councillor may request that an item is placed on the agenda of the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee for consideration. 

7.45.3 The procedure for dealing with a Call for Action is set out in the Councillor 
Call for Action - Guidance for Councillors attached to this section of the 
Rules at 7.46 to 7.51 

 
___________________________________________________ 

Councillor Call for Action - Guidance for Councillors 
 
Introduction 
7.46.1. The Local Government Wales Measure 2011 introduced a number of new 

provisions aimed at strengthening local democracy.  Section 63 of the 
Measure introduced a provision for “Councillor Calls for Action” (CCfA) which 
enables Councillors to refer issues of local importance to Scrutiny 
Committees . 

7.46.2 CCfAs are intended to enable local Councillors and their electors to obtain a 
response from their Council Leadership on issues of local importance.  CCfAs 
should be regarded as one of a series of tools which Councillors have at their 
disposal to resolve local issues and make a positive difference in their 
community.  Previously in Wales, only local Crime and Disorder issues could 
be referred by the local Councillor to the designated Health and Care Scrutiny 
Committee for action and it should be noted that these local crime and 

Page 65

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1235&tag=-390156787
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1240&tag=-1682580700
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1240&tag=-1682580700


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 22 

disorder referrals will remain in place under separate legislation. 
7.46.3 As part of their community leadership role, Councillors have always attempted 

to resolve issues on behalf of their local residents and CCfAs provide an 
additional avenue for Councillors to follow if the normal ways of resolving an 
issue have not been successful and the issue meets the criteria for a referral.  
It should be noted that a referral under this process should be seen as a last 
resort after all other avenues have been exhausted. 

7.46.4 CCfAs have been introduced alongside other powers for scrutiny, including 
powers to scrutinise a wide range of bodies not previously subject to local 
authority scrutiny.  CCfAs are intended to enable any Councillor to refer to a 
Scrutiny Committee, “a local government matter” which falls within the 
Scrutiny Committee’s remit. 

 
How Should I Normally Attempt to Resolve a Local Issue in My Area? 
7.46.5 Local issues can be resolved in a number of ways by Councillors on behalf of 

their residents as listed in the Welsh Government’s Statutory Guidance from 
the Local Government Measure 2011: 

 
7.46.5.1 informal discussions with Officers or other Councillors; 
7.46.5.2 informal discussions with partner representatives; 
7.46.5.3 referral to other “scrutiny” bodies such as Community Health 

Councils or internal audit committee; 
7.46.5.4 formal discussions with Officers and Councillors; 
7.46.5.5 formal letters to the Cabinet members; 
7.46.5.6 asking questions at Full Council; 
7.46.5.7 submitting a motion to Full Council; 
7.46.5.8 organising public meetings; 
7.46.5.9 use of petitions; 
7.46.5.10 making a complaint; 
7.46.5.11 freedom of information requests; 
7.46.5.12 communication with local AMs or MPs; 
7.46.5.13 use of social media or email based campaigns. 

 
7.46.6 This is not an exhaustive list and Councillors may choose different routes for 

specific issues.  If an issue has not been resolved after exhausting all 
possible alternative routes, then a local Councillor can refer it to the 
appropriate Scrutiny Committee  as a CCfA. 

 
What is a Councillor Call For Action? 
7.46.7.1 In order for a Scrutiny Committee to accept a CCfA as an agenda item for 

discussion at one of their meetings, the issue must affect either all or part of a 
Councillor’s electoral area or it must affect someone who lives or works in 
that area and come within that Scrutiny Committee’s remit. 

7.46.7.2 A Councillor does not however need a referral from a constituent in order to 
start the process.  It is important to recognise that a CCfA is not guaranteed 
to solve a given problem, though it can provide a method for discussing such 
problems and, through discussion, attempt to overcome them. 

 
How and When Should I Make a CCfA? 

Page 66

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1243&tag=327671335
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1250&tag=-1534370333
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1260&tag=-1800714767


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 23 

7.46.8.1 A flowchart showing the process is provided at Rule 7.45.  A Councillor may 
initiate the process by completing the form at Rule 7.46.  Further copies are 
available from the Scrutiny Manager.  It is important that the local Councillor 
specifies what outcome is expected from the referral.  After completion the 
form should be returned to the Scrutiny Manager who will log and 
acknowledge the referral within five working days, to track its progress and 
forward a copy of the form to the Monitoring Officer. 

7.46.8.2 The Monitoring Officer will confirm whether or not the referral satisfies the 
requirements outlined in Rule 7.42.9 below to enable it to be placed on the 
agenda for discussion at a meeting of the relevant Scrutiny Committee.  The 
Monitoring Officer reserves the right to exclude from the agenda any matter 
which is vexatious, discriminatory or otherwise potentially unlawful; and the 
Councillor will be informed of this outcome as soon as practicable. 

 
Criteria To Be Followed By A Scrutiny Committee Dealing With CCfAs 
7.46.9 It is up to the chair of a Scrutiny Committee in consultation with the 

Monitoring Officer to decide whether, and in what form, to take the matter 
further.  The chair will use the following criteria to decide whether or not the 
referral is appropriate to be considered by its Scrutiny Committee : 

 
7.46.9.1 does the matter fall within the remit of that Scrutiny Committee? 

NB: Crime and Disorder referrals should be directed to the Health 
and Care Scrutiny Committee. 

7.46.9.2 is that Scrutiny Committee satisfied that all reasonable attempts 
have been made to resolve the issue by the local Councillor? Do 
the responses received by the referring Councillor demonstrate 
that the matter is not being progressed? 

7.46.9.3 has that Scrutiny Committee considered a similar issue recently?  
If so, have the circumstances or evidence changed? 

7.46.9.4 is there a similar or related issue which is the subject of a review 
on the current work programme? It may be more appropriate to 
link the new issue to an existing review, rather than hold a 
separate CCfA hearing.  Relevant time pressures on resolving the 
CCfA should be taken into account. 

7.46.9.5 have all relevant service areas or partner organisations been 
informed and been given enough time to resolve the issue? What 
response has the Councillor received? 

7.46.9.6 is this a case that is being or should be pursued via the Council’s 
corporate complaints procedure? 

7.46.9.7 is it relating to a “quasi-judicial” matter or decision such as 
planning or licensing? 

7.46.9.8 is the matter an issue of genuine local concern which impacts on 
the local community rather than a personal matter? 

7.46.9.9 is this an issue currently being looked at by another form of 
external scrutiny? 

7.46.9.10 and, as with all scrutiny, does the matter have the potential for 
scrutiny to produce recommendations which could realistically be 
implemented and lead to improvements for anyone living or 
working in the Councillor’s electoral division? 

Page 67

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1267&tag=1524167072
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1268&tag=-1915759584
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1268&tag=1800309438
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1268&tag=281894464
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1269&tag=1945679336
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1270&tag=1012237008


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 24 

 
7.46.10 If a Scrutiny Committee decides not to accept the CCfA it must inform the 

Councillor of the decision and the reasons for it.  
7.46.11 If a Scrutiny Committee decides to accept the CCfA the Councillor will be 

informed and advised of the agreed Protocol, e.g. the Councillor will be given 
adequate notice (a minimum of 10 clear days) of the date of the Scrutiny 
Committee’s meeting.  The Councillor will be requested to attend the 
Scrutiny Committee and informed that s/he will have five minutes in which to 
address the Scrutiny Committee .  The Scrutiny Committee may then wish to 
question the Councillor further before deciding how it intends to take the 
matter forward.  This could include: 

 
7.46.11.1 asking the relevant responsible authorities to respond to the CCfA; 
7.46.11.2 setting up a research or task and finish group to undertake a more 

in-depth review; 
7.46.11.3 asking for further evidence and/or witnesses to be brought to a 

future meeting.  The Scrutiny Committee has the power to request 
“designated persons” 7 such as representatives from other public 
bodies/agencies to attend, where relevant, and to request 
information.   

 
Potential Outcomes From a CCfA 
7.47.1 A Scrutiny Committee could: 
 

7.47.1.1 determine that it is a complex issue that requires further 
investigation and commission a scrutiny review of the issue; 

7.47.1.2 write a response and make recommendations on the CCfA to a 
relevant responsible authority; 

7.47.1.3 decide that further action is not appropriate giving its reasons. 
 
7.47.2 Once a Scrutiny Committee has completed its work, the Councillor who made 

the referral will receive a copy of any response or recommendations made. 
 
Timescales for Dealing With a CCfA 
7.48.1 Within 10 working days of receipt of a CCfA the chair of the relevant Scrutiny 

Committee will consult with the Monitoring Officer to determine if the criteria 
set out in Rule 7.46.9 above have been met so as to ensure that it is 
appropriate for the CCfA to be dealt with at the next meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee. 

7.48.2 In exceptional circumstances, for example where there are unavoidable time 
constraints, the chair may convene a special meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee. 

7.48.3 Should a CCfA result in recommendations to the Cabinet or other responsible 
authorities, they will be requested to make a response to the 
recommendations within 28 days and two months respectively. 

7.48.4 The Scrutiny Committee will monitor implementation of any recommendations 
as part of its Forward Work Programme. 

 
7 The Welsh Government have yet to publish a list of “designated persons”. 

Page 68

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1279&tag=1312786957
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1280&tag=-759936907
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1280&tag=2055810227
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1280&tag=2055810227
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1280&tag=-619547555
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1280&tag=-1062161413
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1280&tag=-1801192807
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1283&tag=158866155
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1285&tag=233288893
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1289&tag=-1297696202
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1292&tag=-444883653
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1293&tag=-1456054319


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 25 

7.49 

Page 69



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 26 

 

Page 70



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 27 

 
 

Councillor Call for Action Referral Form 
7.50 
 
Name of Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Date given to the 
Monitoring Officer  
 

   

Name of Councillor 
making CCfA 

Councillor …… 

Councillor’s 
Electoral Division  

  

Councillor’s 
Address 

  

Councillor’s 
Telephone  

  

Councillor’s E-mail    
     
SUBJECT of CCfA   
Details  
Please briefly explain 
what the issue is and 
how it affects either 
all or part of your 
electoral area, or how 
it affects someone 
who lives or works in 
your electoral 
division. 

  

Action taken to 
date  
Please explain what 
steps you or others 
have taken, and with 
whom, to try to 
resolve the issue 
(please tick the 
actions you or others 
have taken to date) 
or add additional 
actions. 

 Informal discussions with Officers or other councillors 
 Informal discussions with partner representatives 
 Referral to other “scrutiny” bodies such as Community 

Health Councils or internal audit committee 
 Formal discussions with Officers and councillors 
 Formal letters to the Cabinet members 
 Asking questions at Full Council 
 Submitting a motion to Full Council 
 Organising public meetings 
 Use of petitions 
 Making a complaint 
 Freedom of Information requests 
 Communication with local AMs or MPs 
 Use of social media or email based campaigns 
 

Page 71

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23ExecutiveCabinetSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1326&tag=-988785175


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 28 

Other Actions (Please Specify). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Expected Outcome  
Please describe the 
outcome you hope to 
gain via this referral. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Papers attached  
Please list 
documents attached 
which should 
evidence the impact 
of the issue, the 
steps taken and any 
responses received. 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
 

 
Administration only. 
Date received by 
Monitoring Officer 

 

Date CCfA accepted by 
Monitoring Officer 

 

Date of Next Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 

 

Notes for Councillors: 
7.51.1 The following criteria will be taken into consideration when a  Scrutiny 

Committee decide whether to progress with your CCfA: 
 

7.51.1.1 have all reasonable attempts been made to resolve the issue? 
Do the responses received by you demonstrate that the matter 
is not being progressed? 

7.51.1.2 has the committee considered a similar issue recently – if yes 
have the circumstances or evidence changed? 

7.51.1.3 is there a similar or related issue which is the subject of a review 
on the current work programme? It may be more appropriate to 
link the new issue to an existing review, rather than hold a 
separate CCfA hearing.  Relevant time pressures on resolving 
the CCfA should be taken into account. 

Page 72

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1342&tag=-328289205
http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1342&tag=-328289205


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 29 

7.51.1.4 have all relevant service areas or partner organisations been 
informed and been given enough time to resolve the issue? 
What response have you received? 

7.51.1.5 is this a case that is being or should be pursued via the 
Council’s corporate complaints procedure? 

7.51.1.6 is it relating to a “quasi-judicial” matter or decision such as 
planning or licensing? 

7.51.1.7 is the matter an issue of genuine local concern, which impacts 
on the local community rather than a personal matter? 

7.51.1.8 is this an issue currently being looked at by another form of 
external scrutiny? 

7.51.1.9 and, as with all scrutiny, does the matter referred have the 
potential for scrutiny to produce recommendations, which could 
realistically be implemented and lead to improvements for 
anyone living or working in your electoral division. 

 
7.51.2.1 Consider whether your referral might be considered premature by the 

Scrutiny Committee .   
7.51.2.2 Consider whether other potential remedies have been exhausted, before a 

referral is made.  
7.51.3 Members should be aware that if a premature referral is made, the 

Committee is likely to refuse to deal with the issue, based on the criteria 
outlined above.  If the Monitoring Officer believes that the referral is 
premature, s/he will advise you accordingly. 

 

Page 73

http://clients.bonddickinson.com/SmartPrecedentServer/control/SmartPrecedent/revisitQ?id=0%40%2Ffiles%2Flogic%2FModel+Welsh+Constitution+-v1.lgc%23OverviewSmartPhrase&returndest=eXC_Paragraph_1352&tag=758435474


SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 30 

Appendix 1 – ”Call-In Request” 
 

CALL-IN OF LEADER / CABINET / CABINET COMMITTEE / 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISION - REQUEST FORM. 

 
CALL-IN REQUEST FOR A MATTER TO BE CALLED-IN BY A SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE. 
 
TO: The Monitoring Officer. 
 
I County Councillor ____________________________________ Chair of the 
 

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee YES / NO 
Learning and Skills Scrutiny Committee YES / NO 
Economy, Residents, Community and Governance Scrutiny 
Committee 

YES / NO 

 
We 4 County Councillors being Members of the 
 
Health and Care Scrutiny Committee YES / NO 
Learning  and Skills Scrutiny Committee YES / NO 
Economy, Residents, Community and Governance Scrutiny Committee YES / NO 
 
Request the call in of the decision referred to in Schedule 1 (Attached) to be 
reviewed by the Committee of which [ I am Chair] [ We are Members].  
 
I / We confirm that the matter is one which falls within the remit of the Committee of 
which [I am Chair] / [We are Members]. 
 
I / We make this request on the ground(s) following written advice from the 
Monitoring Officer and / or Chief Finance Officer (Attached at Schedule 2): 
 
(i) that the decision or action is contrary to the policy framework or budget, or 

falls outside the functions of the Cabinet; and / or 
(ii) that the Cabinet or decision maker had not followed agreed procedures on 

consultation before reaching its decision; and / or 
(iii) that the Cabinet had not followed, or had failed to take account of, any legal 

obligations, including regulations or statutory guidance governing the 
Council’s actions, or other guidance adopted by the Council. 

 
Date: __________________________________ 
 
Name: Signature: 
  
  
  
  
  

Page 74



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 31 

 
 
IMPORTANT NOTE TO CHAIRS AND MEMBERS OF A SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 
If you consider that a Cabinet decision falls within one or more of the categories set 
out above it is your responsibility to obtain from the Monitoring Officer and / or the 
Chief Finance Officer their written confirmation that he / she / they agree with your 
view and that their written advice is appended to this request for a Call-In. 
 
This form must be wholly completed – including Schedules 1 and 2 and must be 
received by the Monitoring Officer by no later than 5 p.m. on the 5th Working Day 
following publication of the Cabinet decision. 
 
Thus by way of example where (as is usually the case) a Cabinet decision is 
published on a Thursday this completed form must be received by the Monitoring 
Officer by no later than 5 p.m. on Thursday of the following week. Where a bank 
holiday Monday intervenes then this deadline will be extended to 5 p.m. on the 
Friday of the following week. 
 
Chairs / Members are particularly asked to note that incomplete forms WILL NOT be 
accepted nor will those received after 5 p.m. on the 5th day. No exception 
whatsoever will be made to this rule. 
 
This process applies to all decisions relating to “Cabinet Functions” and so applies 
equally to decisions of the Leader, the Cabinet a Cabinet Committee or any decision 
by an individual Portfolio Holder. 
 
PLEASE NOTE the following exceptions which apply to a Call-In Request: 
 
In order to ensure that call-in is not abused or causes undue delay, certain 
limitations are to be placed on its use. These are: 
 
(i) that a scrutiny committee may only call-in 5 decisions per year. 
(ii) only decisions involving expenditure or reduction in service over a value of 

£25,000 may be called-in. 
(iii) four members of a scrutiny committee are needed for a decision to be called-

in. 
(iv) once a member has signed a request for a call-in s/he may not do so again 

until a period of 6 months has expired. 
(v) the decision has not been determined to be urgent and not subject to a Call-

In. 
 

Page 75



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 32 

 
          
 SCHEDULE 1. 
 
TO BE COMPLETED BY THE CHAIR OR 4 MEMBERS REQUESTING THE CALL-

IN. 
 
1. Leader / Cabinet / Cabinet Committee / Individual Portfolio Holder 

Decision To Be Called-In (Please include Date of Meeting and Agenda 
Reference Number): 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Reason for Call-In: 
 
2.1 What is the reason for the Call-In Request. Please tick which of the 

conditions which you believe apply: 
 
(i) that the decision or action is contrary to the policy framework or budget, or 

falls outside the functions of the Cabinet; and / or 
 

(ii) that the Cabinet or decision maker had not followed agreed procedures on 
consultation before reaching its decision; and / or 

 

(iii) that the Cabinet had not followed, or had failed to take account of, any legal 
obligations, including regulations or statutory guidance governing the 
Council’s actions, or other guidance adopted by the Council. 

 

 
2.2 Please provide an explanation in the box below as to why you believe 

that the conditions in 2.1 above apply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) 
 

Page 77



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 34 

 
          
 SCHEDULE 2. 
 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE MONITORING OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER. 

 
1. Chief Finance Officer’s Advice. 
 
Chief Finance Officer’s Advice on the Call-In Request.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) 
 
Date: _________________________________ 
 
Signature: ______________________________________ 
 

Page 78



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 35 

 
2. Monitoring Officer’s Advice. 
 
Monitoring Officer’s Advice on the Call-In Request.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) 
 
 
Date: _________________________________ 
 
Signature: ______________________________________ 
 

Page 79



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 36 

 
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY: 

 
(a) Date of Request to Call-In Decision (as above):  
(b) Date of Cabinet Decision:  
(c) Is Date of Request within 5 Working Days of 

Cabinet Decision: 
YES / NO 

(d) Does the matter fall within the remit of the 
Scrutiny Committee? 

YES / NO 

(e) Does the Chief Finance Officer’s advice 
support a Call-In Request: 

YES / NO 

(f) Does the Monitoring Officer’s advice support a 
Call-In Request: 

YES / NO 

(g) Signature(s) of Chair or 4 Members of 
Relevant Committee included: 

YES / NO 

(h) Call-In Notice to be Issued: YES / NO 
 
 
(i) Date of Committee Meeting to consider Call-In 

(within 10 working days of issue of notice): 
 

(j) Name(s) of Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Holders 
to be Invited to Attend Meeting: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(k) Details of Heads of Service to be Invited to 
Attend Committee: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(l) Cabinet Portfolio Holders Heads of Service 
Advised of Committee Meeting (insert date): 

YES / NO 

(m) Questions and Checklist prepared for the 
Committee: 

YES / NO 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 37 

 
Appendix 2 – “Call-In Notice” 
 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE MONITORING OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER. 

 
1. Chief Finance Officer. 
 
1.1 Please tick which of the conditions which you believe apply for a “Call-

In Notice” to be issued: 
 
(i) that the decision or action is contrary to the policy framework or budget, or 

falls outside the functions of the Cabinet; and / or 
 

(ii) that the Cabinet or decision maker had not followed agreed procedures on 
consultation before reaching its decision; and / or 

 

(iii) that the Cabinet had not followed, or had failed to take account of, any legal 
obligations, including regulations or statutory guidance governing the 
Council’s actions, or other guidance adopted by the Council. 

 

 
Please set out the reasons why it is believed that one or more of the conditions 
are satisfied:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) 
 
Date: _________________________________ 
 
Signature: ______________________________________ 
 

Page 81



SECTION 7 – SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 

Version 8 – Effective from 23 January 2020 
 

Section 7 – Page 38 

 
2. Monitoring Officer. 
 
2.1 Please tick which of the conditions which you believe apply for a “Call-

In Notice” to be issued: 
 
(i) that the decision or action is contrary to the policy framework or budget, or 

falls outside the functions of the Cabinet; and / or 
 

(ii) that the Cabinet or decision maker had not followed agreed procedures on 
consultation before reaching its decision; and / or 

 

(iii) that the Cabinet had not followed, or had failed to take account of, any legal 
obligations, including regulations or statutory guidance governing the 
Council’s actions, or other guidance adopted by the Council. 

 

 
Please set out the reasons why it is believed that one or more of the conditions 
are satisfied: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary) 
 
 
Date: _________________________________ 
 
Signature: ______________________________________ 

Page 82



Report to the Democratic Services Committee 
 
Establishing a New Panel to Promote the Welsh Language and Provide Oversight for Welsh 
Language Provision within Powys County Council 
 
Background 
 
During the last few years, there have been many changes to the way the Council is required to 
provide services through the medium of Welsh, to promote the Welsh language through its work, to 
consider the impact of its decisions on the Welsh language, and how the impact can be mitigated, 
and to increase the use of the Welsh language and number of Welsh speakers within the county. 
 
The Welsh Government’s legislation and strategies which relate to the way Local Authorities must 
operate through the medium of Welsh, develop the use of the Welsh language and increase the 
number of Welsh speakers include; 

 The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards – providing 
services, developing policies, internal use, record keeping and duties to promote 

 Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050 Strategy, to achieve a Million Welsh Speakers by 2050 

 More than Just Words: Welsh Government’s Strategic Framework for providing services in 
Welsh within Health and Social Care. 

 
Currently, although there are several partnership forums that the Council is part of which discuss the 
Welsh language, there isn’t an internal forum to discuss these aspects specifically within Powys 
County Council, to enable open and detailed discussions to ensure these issues are considered 
sufficiently within the Council’s political structures, strategies and decisions, and to ensure sufficient 
consideration to the Council’s impact and influence on the Welsh language within the County. 
 
It is therefore proposed that a new Panel is established, under the Democratic Services Committee’s 
structure, and which will report to that committee, to look at the Council’s services and plans within 
a Welsh language context. 
 
The Purpose of the Panel 
 
The purpose of the new Panel, if approved, will be to; 
 

 Oversee the work of other groups considering Welsh language issues within the Council, e.g. 
Welsh Language Support, Promotion and Challenge Group; Welsh Language Education Forum; 
Officers Group* (yet to be established) by receiving reports and setting a direction for the work 
of those groups 

 Consider the Council’s main strategies and plans, to ensure the Welsh language is sufficiently 
considered, and proposing ways in which the Welsh language can be promoted within those 
plans and strategies 

 Consider samples of Welsh Language Impact Assessments, which are required under the Welsh 
Language Standards, to ensure sufficient attention is given to the impact of the Council’s 
decisions on the Welsh language, to look at how our considerations could be strengthened to 
achieve a better impact, and that appropriate mitigation is proposed if any adverse impacts are 
identified 

 Recommend ways in which the Council’s strategies and plans could contribute towards the 
Welsh Government’s goal of achieving one million Welsh speakers by 2050 

 Consider how we can increase the use of the Welsh language internally within the Council 

Page 83



 Receive reports on Powys County Council’s compliance with the Welsh Language Standards 
under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 

 The Panel will meet every quarter, with meetings arranged to fit with the Democratic Services 
Committee timetable 

 The Panel’s meetings will be held through the medium of Welsh, with simultaneous translation 
provided when required to enable non-Welsh speaking members and officers to participate in 
the discussion 

 
Reporting 
 
This new Panel, if approved, will report to Powys County Council’s Democratic Services Committee, 
with meetings arranged to ensure an appropriate timetable to consider aspects of the Council’s 
work relating to the Welsh language, to fit with the Democratic Services Committee’s timetable. 
 
Membership 
 
It is proposed that the new Panel, if approved, is chaired by the Chairperson / Member of Powys 
County Council’s Democratic Services Committee. 
 
It is proposed that the Panel’s membership includes; 
 

 The Welsh Language Portfolio Holder 

 One member from each political group represented on the Council, to ensure cross-party 
input and support to the discussions 

 
Appropriate officers will also attend and support the Panel’s work. 
 
Implementation 
 
To support the work and direction of the Panel more widely within the Council, it is also proposed 
that a Welsh Language Promotion Officer’s Group is established, with at least one representative 
from each service area, which will be responsible for promoting the Welsh language and supporting 
the implementation on the Welsh Language Standards within their service. 
 
Members of the group should be influential officers within their service, to ensure that sufficient 
attention is given to the issues discussed. 
 
This group will be co-ordinated by Powys County Council’s Welsh Language Officer, and will report to 
the Welsh Language Promotion and Supervision Panel. 
 
 

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 

That the Democratic Services Committee 
recommends to Full Council that a new Panel 
be established to Promote the Welsh Language 
and Oversee Welsh Language Provision within 
Powys County Council 

To ensure sufficient consideration is given to 
the Welsh language within Powys County 
Council’s plans and strategies, to promote the 
use of the Welsh language and increase the 
number of Welsh speakers, and ensure Council 
services operate according to the requirements 
of the Welsh Language Standards 

 
 

Page 84



Adroddiad i’r Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Sefydlu Panel Newydd i Hybu’r Iaith Gymraeg a Goruchwylio Darpariaeth Cymraeg o fewn Cyngor 
Sir Powys 
 
Cefndir 
 
Dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf, cafwyd cryn newidiadau yn y ffordd mae gofyn i’r Cyngor ddarparu 
gwasanaethau trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, hybu a hyrwyddo’r Gymraeg trwy ei waith, ystyried effaith 
ei benderfyniadau ar y Gymraeg, a sut gellir eu haddasu i wella’r effaith honno, ac ar gyfer cynyddu’r 
defnydd o’r Gymraeg a nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg o fewn y Sir. 
 
Mae deddfwriaeth a strategaethau Llywodraeth Cymru sy’n ymwneud â’r modd mae’n ofynnol i 
Awdurdodau Lleol weithredu trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, datblygu defnydd o’r iaith a chynyddu nifer y 
siaradwyr Cymraeg yn cynnwys; 

 Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 a Safonau’r Gymraeg – cynnig gwasanaethau, datblygu 
polisi, defnydd mewnol, cadw cofnodion a dyletswydd hyrwyddo 

 Strategaeth Cymraeg 2050 Llywodraeth Cymru, i sicrhau Miliwn o Siaradwyr Cymraeg erbyn 
2050 

 Mwy na Geiriau: Fframwaith Strategol Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer cynnig gwasanaethau yn 
yr Iaith Gymraeg ym Maes Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol. 

 
Ar hyn o bryd, er bod nifer o fforymau partneriaeth y mae’r Cyngor yn rhan ohonynt sy’n trafod y 
Gymraeg, nid oes fforwm fewnol ar gyfer rhoi ystyriaeth i’r agweddau hyn o fewn Cyngor Sir Powys, i 
alluogi trafodaethau agored a manwl i sicrhau fod yr agweddau hyn yn cael sylw digonol o fewn 
strwythurau gwleidyddol, a strategaethau a phenderfyniadau’r Cyngor, a sicrhau fod ystyriaeth 
addas i effaith a dylanwad y Cyngor ar yr iaith Gymraeg o fewn y Sir. 
 
Y cynnig felly yw sefydlu Panel newydd, sydd yn eistedd o dan strwythur y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd, ac yn adrodd i’r Pwyllgor hwnnw, fydd yn gallu edrych ar wasanaethau a 
chynlluniau’r Cyngor yng nghyd-destun yr iaith Gymraeg. 
 
Diben y Panel 
 
Diben y Panel newydd hwn, o gael ei gymeradwyo gan y cyngor, fydd; 
 

 Goruchwylio gwaith grwpiau eraill sy’n gweithredu ym maes yr iaith Gymraeg o fewn y Cyngor, 
e.e. Grŵp Hyrwyddo, Herio a Chefnogi’r Gymraeg, Fforwm Addysg Gymraeg, Grŵp Swyddogion* 
(eto i’w sefydlu) trwy dderbyn adroddiadau a gosod cyfeiriad ar gyfer gwaith y grwpiau hynny 

 Ystyried prif strategaethau a chynlluniau’r Cyngor, i sicrhau fod ystyriaeth ddigonol i’r iaith 
Gymraeg a chynnig ffyrdd o hybu a hyrwyddo’r Gymraeg o fewn y cynlluniau a’r strategaethau 
hynny 

 Ystyried samplau o Asesiadau Effaith ar y Gymraeg, sy’n ofynnol o dan Safonau’r Gymraeg, i 
sicrhau fod sylw digonol yn cael ei roi i effeithiau penderfyniadau’r Cyngor ar y Gymraeg, i 
edrych sut y gellid cryfhau ein hystyriaethau i gael gwell effaith, a bod mesurau lliniaru addas yn 
cael eu cynnig yn sgil unrhyw effeithiau andwyol 

 Argymell sut y gallai strategaethau a chynlluniau’r Cyngor gyfrannu tuag at weledigaeth 
Llywodraeth Cymru o sicrhau miliwn o siaradwyr Cymraeg erbyn 2050 

 Ystyried sut gellir cynyddu’r defnydd o’r iaith Gymraeg yn fewnol o fewn y Cyngor 

 Derbyn adroddiadau am gydymffurfiaeth Cyngor Sir Powys â Safonau’r Gymraeg o dan Fesur y 
Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 

Page 85



 Bydd y Panel yn cwrdd yn chwarterol, gyda’r cyfarfodydd wedi’u trefnu i gyd-fynd ag amserlen y 
Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

 Bydd cyfarfodydd y Panel yn cael eu cynnal trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg, gyda gwasanaeth cyfieithu 
ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu lle bo angen i ganiatáu i aelodau neu swyddogion di-Gymraeg 
gymryd rhan yn y drafodaeth. 

 
Adrodd 
 
Bydd y Panel newydd hwn, o’i gymeradwyo, yn adrodd i Bwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Cyngor Sir Powys, gyda’r cyfarfodydd yn cael eu trefnu fel bod amserlen addas ar gyfer ystyried 
gwahanol agweddau ar waith y Cyngor mewn perthynas â’r Gymraeg i gyd-fynd ag amserlen y 
Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
Aelodaeth 
 
Cynigir fod y Panel newydd hwn, o’i gymeradwyo yn cael ei gadeirio gan Gadeirydd / Aelod o 
Bwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Cyngor Sir Powys. 
 
Cynigir fod aelodaeth y Panel yn cynnwys; 
 

 Aelod Portffolio’r Gymraeg 

 Un cynrychiolydd o bob grŵp gwleidyddol sy’n cael ei gynrychioli ar y Cyngor, i sicrhau 
mewnbwn a chefnogaeth trawsbleidiol i’r trafodaethau 

 
Bydd swyddogion priodol hefyd yn mynychu a chefnogi gwaith y Panel. 
 
Gweithredu 
 
Er mwyn cefnogi gwaith a chyfeiriad y Panel yn ehangach o fewn y Cyngor, cynigir hefyd bod Grŵp 
Swyddogion Hyrwyddo’r Gymraeg yn cael ei sefydlu, gydag o leiaf un cynrychiolwyr o bob maes 
gwasanaeth, fydd yn gyfrifol am gefnogi hybu a hyrwyddo’r Gymraeg a chefnogi gweithredu 
Safonau’r Gymraeg o fewn eu gwasanaethau. 
 
Dylai aelodau’r grŵp hwn fod yn swyddogion dylanwadol o fewn eu gwasanaethau i sicrhau bod sylw 
digonol yn cael eu roi i’r materion a drafodir. 
 
Bydd y grŵp hwn i’w gydlynu gan Swyddog Iaith Gymraeg Cyngor Sir Powys, a bydd yn adrodd i 
Panel Hybu a Goruchwylio’r Gymraeg. 
 
 

Argymhelliad: Rheswm: 

Fod y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn 
argymell i’r Cyngor Llawn fod Panel newydd yn 
cael ei sefydlu i Hybu’r Iaith Gymraeg a 
Goruchwylio Darpariaeth Cymraeg o fewn 
Cyngor Sir Powys 

I sicrhau fod ystyriaeth ddigonol yn cael ei rhoi 
i’r iaith Gymraeg o fewn cynlluniau a 
strategaethau Cyngor Sir Powys, i hybu a 
hyrwyddo’r defnydd o’r Gymraeg a chynyddu 
nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg, a sicrhau fod 
adrannau’r Cyngor yn gweithredu yn ôl 
gofynion Safonau’r Gymraeg 

 
 

Page 86


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
	4 Constitution and Other Matters
	Appendix 1 - Section 4 - Full Council v9 Draft
	Appendix 2 - Section 7 - Scrutiny Committees v9 Draft
	Councillor Call for Action - Guidance for Councillors
	Councillor Call for Action Referral Form
	7.50

	Appendix 3 - Report - Welsh Language Panel
	Appendix 4 - Adroddiad - Panel y Gymraeg v2


